
 

Mr Dylan Williams 
Prif Weithredwr – Chief Executive 
 
CYNGOR SIR YNYS MÔN 
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 
Swyddfeydd y Cyngor - Council Offices 
LLANGEFNI 
Ynys Môn - Anglesey 
LL77 7TW 
 
Ffôn / tel (01248) 752500 
Ffacs / fax (01248) 750839 

 

 

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD  NOTICE OF MEETING 

PWYLLGOR GWAITH  
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

DYDD MAWRTH 
10 RHAGFYR 2024 

 10.00 o’r gloch  

TUESDAY 
10 DECEMBER 2024 

 10.00 am   
YSTAFELL BWYLLGOR, SWYDDFEYDD 

Y CYNGOR AC YN RHITHIOL DRWY 
ZOOM 

COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNCIL 
OFFICES AND VIRTUALLY VIA ZOOM 

Swyddog Pwyllgor Ann Holmes 
01248 752518 Committee Officer 

 
AELODAU/MEMBERS 
 
Plaid Cymru/The Party of Wales 
 
Neville Evans, Carwyn E Jones, Dyfed Wyn Jones, Gary Pritchard, Alun Roberts, Nicola Roberts, 
Robin Wyn Williams 
 
Y Grŵp Annibynnol/The Independent Group 
 
Dafydd Roberts, Dafydd Rhys Thomas 
 
 
 
COPI ER GWYBODAETH / COPY FOR INFORMATION   
 
I Aelodau'r Cyngor Sir / To the Members of the County Council 
 
Bydd aelod sydd ddim ar y Pwyllgor Gwaith yn cael gwahoddiad i’r cyfarfod i siarad (ond nid i bleidleisio) os ydy o/hi wedi 
gofyn am gael rhoddi eitem ar y rhaglen dan Reolau Gweithdrefn y Pwyllgor Gwaith. Efallai  bydd y Pwyllgor Gwaith yn 
ystyried ceisiadau gan aelodau sydd ddim ar y Pwyllgor Gwaith i siarad ar faterion eraill. 
 
A non-Executive member will be invited to the meeting and may speak (but not vote) during the meeting, if he/she has 
requested the item to be placed on the agenda under the Executive Procedure Rules.  Requests by non-Executive 
members to speak on other matters may be considered at the discretion of The Executive.  
 
 

Public Document Pack



Please note that meetings of the Committee are streamed for live and subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s website. The Authority is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act and data collected during this live stream will be retained in accordance with 
the Authority’s published policy. 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
  
1.   APOLOGIES   

  
2    DECLARATION OF INTEREST   
 To receive any declaration of interest from any Member or Officer in respect of any 

item of business. 
  

3    URGENT MATTERS CERTIFIED BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OR HIS 
APPOINTED OFFICER   

 No urgent matters at the time of dispatch of this agenda. 
  

4    THE EXECUTIVE'S FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 1 - 10) 

 To submit a report by the Head of Democracy.  
  

5    PROCUREMENT STRATEGIC PLAN AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES  
(Pages 11 - 60) 

 To submit a report by the Director of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer.  
  

6    HOUSING RENTS AND SERVICE CHARGES 2025/26  (Pages 61 - 78) 

 To submit a report by the Head of Housing Services.  
 

 
 



 
                 

                              
1 

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This document is also available in Welsh. 

 

 

 

 

Isle of Anglesey County Council 

Report to: The Executive 
 

Date: 10 December 2024 
 

Subject: The Executive’s Forward Work Programme 
 

Portfolio Holder(s): Cllr Gary Pritchard 
 

Head of Service / Director: 
 

Lynn Ball, Director of Function – Council Business / Monitoring 
Officer 

Report Author: 
 

Dyfan Sion, Head of Democracy 

Local Members:  Not applicable 

 

 

A – Recommendation/s and reason/s 
In accordance with its Constitution, the Council is required to publish a forward work programme 
and to update it regularly.  The Executive’s Forward Work Programme is published each month to 
enable both members of the Council and the public to see what key decisions are likely to be taken 
over the coming months.   
 
The Executive is requested to: 
 
confirm the attached updated work programme which covers January – August 2025;   
 
identify any matters for specific input and consultation with the Council’s Scrutiny Committees; 
  
note that the forward work programme is updated monthly and submitted as a standing monthly 
item to the Executive. 

 

 

 

B – What other options did you consider and why did you reject them and/or opt for 
this option?  
- 

 

 

C – Why is this a decision for the Executive? 
The approval of the Executive is sought before each update is published to strengthen 
accountability and forward planning arrangements. 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 
                 

                              
2 

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This document is also available in Welsh. 

 

 

Ch – Is this decision consistent with policy approved by the full Council? 
Yes. 
 

 

 

D – Is this decision within the budget approved by the Council? 
Not applicable. 
 

 
 

Dd –  Assessing the potential impact (if relevant): 
1 How does this decision impact on our long 

term needs as an Island? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Not relevant. 

2 Is this a decision which it is envisaged will 
prevent future costs / dependencies on the 
Authority? If so, how? 

3 Have we been working collaboratively with 
other organisations to come to this 
decision?  If so, please advise whom. 

4 Have Anglesey citizens played a part in 
drafting this way forward, including those 
directly affected by the decision? Please 
explain how. 

5 Note any potential impact that this decision 
would have on the groups protected under 
the Equality Act 2010. 

6 If this is a strategic decision, note any 
potential impact that the decision would 
have on those experiencing socio-economic 
disadvantage. 

7 Note any potential impact that this decision 
would have on opportunities for people to 
use the Welsh language and on treating the 
Welsh language no less favourably than the 
English language. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 
                 

                              
3 

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This document is also available in Welsh. 

 

 

E – Who did you consult?                         What did they say? 
1 Chief Executive / Senior Leadership Team 

(SLT) (mandatory) 
The forward work programme is discussed 
monthly at Leadership Team meetings.   

2 
 

Finance / Section 151 
(mandatory)  

3 Legal / Monitoring Officer 
(mandatory)  

4 Human Resources (HR)  

5 Property   

6 Information Communication Technology 
(ICT) 

 

7 Procurement  

8 Scrutiny Under normal circumstances, monthly joint 
discussions take place on the work programmes 
of the Executive and the two Scrutiny 
Committees in order to ensure alignment. 

9 Local Members Not relevant 

 

F - Appendices: 
 
The Executive’s Forward Work Programme: January – August 2025. 
 

 
 

Ff - Background papers (please contact the author of the Report for any further information): 

 
 

 

Page 3



 

  
                              

1 

 

 

 

 

The Executive’s Forward Work Programme  

Isle of Anglesey County Council 
 

Period: January – August 2025  
 

This forward work programme lists all the decisions that the Executive intends to take and what business the scrutiny committees will 

be considering as well as when those matters will be discussed.  It also lists any recommendations the Executive intends to make 

regarding decisions which must be made by the full Council.   

 

Executive decisions may be taken by the Executive as a collective body or by individual members of the Executive acting under 

delegated powers. 

 

The forward work programme is reviewed on a regular basis and monthly updates are published.  The fact that a decision has not been 

included in the forward work programme does not prevent urgent or unforeseen matters being considered.      

 

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg / This document is also available in Welsh. 

 

Last updated on 27 November 2024

P
age 4



 

  
                              

2 

 

 

 

 

January 2025 
 

Date of meeting or, if the 
decision is delegated, 
publication date 

The matter to be considered Portfolio Member Date to scrutiny and / or full Council 
(if relevant) 

21 January 2025 meeting  The Executive’s forward work programme Cllr Gary Pritchard  

 Revenue Budget 2025/26 – initial 
proposals 

Cllr Robin Williams Finance Scrutiny Panel – 9 January 
2025 

Corporate Scrutiny Committee – 15 
January 2025 

 Independent sector care home fees for 
2025/26 

Cllr Alun Roberts  

 Community based non-residential social 
care services – 2025/26 fees and 
charges 

Cllr Alun Roberts  

 

February 2025 
 

 

Date of meeting or, if the 
decision is delegated, 
publication date 

The matter to be considered Portfolio Member Date to scrutiny and / or full Council 
(if relevant) 

18 February 2025 meeting  The Executive’s forward work programme Cllr Gary Pritchard  

 Revenue Budget Monitoring – Quarter 3, 
2024/25 

Cllr Robin Williams Finance Scrutiny Panel -                
12 February 2025 

 Capital Budget Monitoring – Quarter 3, 
2024/25 

Cllr Robin Williams Finance Scrutiny Panel -                 
12 February 2025 

P
age 5



 

  
                              

3 

 

 

 

Date of meeting or, if the 
decision is delegated, 
publication date 

The matter to be considered Portfolio Member Date to scrutiny and / or full Council 
(if relevant) 

 Housing Revenue Account Budget 
Monitoring – Quarter 3, 2024/25 

Cllr Robin Williams Finance Scrutiny Panel -               
12 February 2025 

 Treasury Management mid-year review 
2024/25 

Cllr Robin Williams  

 Treasury Management Strategy 2025/26 Cllr Robin Williams  

 Fees and charges 2025/26 Cllr Robin Williams  

 Local authority homes for older people – 
setting the standard charge for 2025/26 

Cllr Alun Roberts  

 Welsh Language Policy Cllr Dafydd Roberts Partnership and Regeneration 
Scrutiny Committee – 12 February 
2025 
Full Council – 6 March 2025 

27 February 2025 meeting Capital Strategy Cllr Robin Williams Full Council - 6 March 2025 

 Capital Budget 2025/26 Cllr Robin Williams Full Council - 6 March 2025 

 Revenue Budget 2025/26 – final 
proposals 

Cllr Robin Williams Corporate Scrutiny Committee -     
19 February 2025 
Full Council - 6 March 2025 

Delegated decision – 
February 2025 

Annual Report on the Biodiversity Plan Cllr Nicola Roberts  

 
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 6



 

  
                              

4 

 

 

 

March 2025 
 

Date of meeting or, if the 
decision is delegated, 
publication date 

The matter to be considered Portfolio Member Date to scrutiny and / or full Council 
(if relevant) 

25 March 2025 meeting  The Executive’s forward work programme Cllr Gary Pritchard  

 Corporate Scorecard – Quarter 3, 
2024/25 

Cllr Carwyn Jones Corporate Scrutiny Committee –    
11 March 2025 
 

 Local Area Energy Plan Cllr Nicola Roberts Partnership and Regeneration 
Scrutiny Committee – 12 March 
2025  

 Local Flood Risk Management Strategic 
Plan 

Cllr Dafydd Rhys 
Thomas 

Corporate Scrutiny Committee - 
11 March 2025 

 Further Education Trust Annual Report 
and Accounts 2023/24 

Cllr Dafydd Roberts 

Cllr Robin Williams 

 

Delegated decision – March 
2025 

Annual Equality Report 2023/24 Cllr Alun Roberts Partnership and Regeneration 
Scrutiny Committee – 12 March 
2025 

 

April 2025  
 
Date of meeting or, if the 
decision is delegated, 
publication date 

The matter to be considered Portfolio Member Date to scrutiny and / or full Council 
(if relevant) 

29 April 2025 meeting  The Executive’s forward work programme Cllr Gary Pritchard  

 
 

P
age 7



 

  
                              

5 

 

 

 

May 2025 
 

Date of meeting or, if the 
decision is delegated, 
publication date 

The matter to be considered Portfolio Member Date to scrutiny and / or full Council 
(if relevant) 

May 2025 meeting  The Executive’s forward work programme Cllr Gary Pritchard  

 

June 2025 
 

Date of meeting or, if the 
decision is delegated, 
publication date 

The matter to be considered Portfolio Member Date to scrutiny and / or full Council 
(if relevant) 

June 2025 meeting  The Executive’s forward work programme Cllr Gary Pritchard 
 

 

 Corporate Scorecard – Quarter 4, 
2024/25 

Cllr Carwyn Jones Corporate Scrutiny Committee - 
 

 Revenue Budget Monitoring – Quarter 4, 
2024/25 

Cllr Robin Williams Finance Scrutiny Panel - 

 Capital Budget Monitoring – Quarter 4, 
2024/25 

Cllr Robin Williams Finance Scrutiny Panel - 

 Housing Revenue Account Budget 
Monitoring – Quarter 4, 2024/25 

Cllr Robin Williams Finance Scrutiny Panel - 

Delegated decision – June 
2025 

Welsh Language Standards Annual 
Report 2024/25 

Cllr Dafydd Roberts Partnership and Regeneration 
Scrutiny Committee –  

 
 
 
 

P
age 8



 

  
                              

6 

 

 

 

July 2025 
 

Date of meeting or, if the 
decision is delegated, 
publication date 

The matter to be considered Portfolio Member Date to scrutiny and / or full Council 
(if relevant) 

July 2025 meeting  The Executive’s forward work programme Cllr Gary Pritchard  

 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

Report to: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Date: 10 DECEMBER 2024 

 Subject: PROCUREMENT STRATEGIC PLAN AND CONTRACT 
PROCEDURE RULES 

Portfolio Holder(s): ROBIN WILLIAMS – DEPUTY LEADER & PORTFOLIO HOLDER – 
FINANCE 

Head of Service / 
Director: 

MARC JONES – DIRECTOR OF FUNCTION (RESOURCES) / 
SECTION 151 OFFICER 

Report Author: 
 
Tel: 
E-mail: 

MARC JONES – DIRECTOR OF FUNCTION (RESOURCES) / 
SECTION 151 OFFICER 
01248 762601 
rmjfi@ynysmon.gov.wales 

Local Members:  n/a 

A –Recommendation/s and reason/s 
 
Following on from the UK’s decision to leave the European Union, the UK Government has taken 
the opportunity to revise the legislation in respect of procurement in the public sector. The 
Procurement Act 2023 will come into force on 24 February 2025, which is later than the initial 
planned date of 28 October 2024. In addition, the Welsh Government has passed the Social 
Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Act 2023, which places additional responsibilities 
and duties on public sector organisations in Wales in respect of procurement. 
 
In response to the changing legislation, the Council commissioned an external company to 
review the Council’s preparedness for the change in legislation and to provide the Council with 
an action plan to ensure that the Council was in a position to comply with the legislation. The 
action plan covered a number of areas, including:- the overall strategy, governance, roles and 
responsibilities, training, data and information systems and communications. 
 
The Council has subsequently contracted with the external company to assist in the delivery of 
the action plan. A significant part of the action plan will be delivered prior to the new legislation 
coming into force, with further work planned up until March 2026, when the support contract 
ends. 
 
Two elements of the action plan which require approval from the Executive, relates to the 
Procurement Strategy and the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 
 
Procurement Strategic Plan 
 
The new Procurement Strategic Plan is set out in the Council’s standard template and covers 
the period to March 2029. Procurement is an important aspect of how the Council undertakes its 
business and is vital to ensure the Council delivers the strategic objectives set out in the Council 
Plan. It also ensures that the Council achieves value for money, that procurement is delivered in 
a sustainable way that maximises the benefit for the local economy and local communities, and 
that the procurement method is compliant with all of the legal obligations set out in the new 
Procurement legislation and the Wellbeing and Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 
The Strategic Plan sets out how the Council will:- 
 

• set an example and lead on undertaking procurement in a controlled, commercial and 
sustainable way;  

• use commercial information to guide how procurement is undertaken, with the aim of 
reducing costs, minimising risks and maximising the benefits to the local economy; 

• embrace social value, minimise environmental impacts and reduce carbon emissions; 

• drive compliance with the legislation; 

• manage contractor performance to ensure value for money and minimise risk. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



The Council’s performance on implementing the Procurement Strategic Plan effectively will be 
done by reporting regularly to the Council’s Leadership Team and to the Executive, and through 
an annual report on Procurement to the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
Contract Procedure Rules 
 
The second part of this report relates to changing the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules 
(CPRs). The CPRs set out the process on how to undertake a procurement exercise and sets 
out the different procurement methods and when they should be used. The change in 
procurement legislation does require the Council to update the CPRs and it provides an 
opportunity to ensure that the CPRs are flexible enough to allow officers to undertake 
procurement exercises in the most efficient and effective way, whilst still ensuring that any 
procurement exercise is controlled and ensures that the Council achieves value for money. 
 
The revised CPRs have been drafted by the Council’s external procurement support in 
consultation with the Director of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer, the Director of 
Function (Resources) / Section 151 Officer and the Council’s Procurement Team. The CPRs will 
be supported by a detailed Procurement Handbook, which is currently being drafted. 
 
The Director of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer reported to the Council on 
removing the CPRs from the Council’s Constitution and to delegate the approval of the CPRs to 
the Executive. The Council approved the change at its meeting on 26 September 2024. 
 
The revised CPRs are attached as Appendix B, along with a summary of the changes that have 
been made compared to the current CPRs, attached as Appendix C. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to:- 
 
1. Approve the Council’s Procurement Strategic Plan, which will come into effect on the date 

the new legislation comes into force (attached as Appendix A). 
 

2. Approve the revised Contract Procedure Rules, which will come into effect on the date the 
new legislation comes into force (attached as Appendix B). 
 

3. Delegate any further decisions in respect of the implementation of the Procurement Action 
Plan, that requires the approval of the Executive, to the Portfolio Holder - Finance. All 
decisions will be published in the normal manner. 
 

B – What other options did you consider and why did you reject them and/or opt 
for this option?  
 
The new Procurement legislation has resulted in the Council having to review its strategy and 
processes in respect of procurement to ensure compliance with the legislation. The only other 
option was to do nothing; however, this was considered to be a significant risk to the Council and 
would leave the Council open to legal challenges of failing to comply with the new legislation. 
Doing nothing would also leave the Council open to criticism from regulators and auditors. 
 

C – Why is this a decision for the Executive? 
 
The approval of Council strategies has been delegated to the Executive by the Council. Following 
on from the Council’s decision on the Contract Procedure Rules on 26 September 2024, approval 
of the rules, and any subsequent changes, has been delegated to the Executive. 
 

CH – Is this decision consistent with policy approved by the full Council? 

Yes 

  

Page 12



D – Is this decision within the budget approved by the Council? 

The decision has no direct budgetary implications. 

Dd – Assessing the potential impact (if relevant): 

1 How does this decision impact on our long 
term needs as an Island? 

The Procurement Strategic Plan is aimed at 
maximising the economic and social benefits 
for Anglesey. 

2 Is this a decision which it is envisaged will 
prevent future costs / dependencies on the 
Authority? If so, how? 

 

The implementation of the strategic plan and 
the CPRs is designed to ensure value for 
money and to prevent unnecessary costs 
and any costs arising from potential legal 
challenges to decisions made by the Council 
in its procurement of works, goods and 
services. 
 

3 Have we been working collaboratively with 
other organisations to come to this 
decision?  If so, please advise whom 

The Council’s external procurement support 
company undertake similar work for a 
number of authorities in the North of 
England. Their advice and support have 
been instrumental in the preparation of the 
Strategic Plan and the revised Contract 
Procedure Rules. 

4 Have Anglesey citizens played a part in 
drafting this way forward, including those 
directly affected by the decision? Please 
explain how. 

Not applicable 

5 Note any potential impact that this decision 
would have on the groups protected under 
the Equality Act 2010. 

Not applicable 

6 If this is a strategic decision, note any 
potential impact that the decision would 
have on those experiencing socio-
economic disadvantage. 

The strategic plan aims to maximise the local 
economic benefit for Anglesey, by 
maximising the amount the Council spends 
locally, as allowed by the Regulations. This 
should improve the local economy and be of 
benefit to those experiencing socio-
economic disadvantage. 

7 Note any potential impact that this decision 
would have on opportunities for people to 
use the Welsh language and on treating the 
Welsh language no less favourably than 
the English language. 

All contract specifications will set out the 
requirements in respect of the Welsh 
language and will ensure that both 
languages are treated equally. 
 

E -   Who did you consult?                   What did they say?                                        

1 Chief Executive / Leadership Team (LT) 
(mandatory) 

The report was considered by the LT at its 
meeting on 17 September 2024. Any 
comments by the Chief Executive have been 
incorporated into the report.  

2 Finance / Section 151 (mandatory)  Author of the report. 

3 Legal / Monitoring Officer (mandatory)  The Monitoring Officer has been consulted 
on drafting the CPRs. The Monitoring Officer 
is a member of the LT and any other 
comments made will have been incorporated 
into the report. 

4 Human Resources (HR) HR have been consulted on the 
implementation of a training plan in respect 
of the strategy and the CPRs. 

Page 13



5 Property  Not applicable 

6 Information Communication Technology 
(ICT) 

Not applicable 

7 Scrutiny Discussed in Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
on the 19th November 2024. 

8 Local Members The report is relevant to all Members. 

9 Any external bodies / other/s Not applicable 

F - Appendices: 
 

 

Appendix A – Procurement Strategic Plan 2024 – 2029 
Appendix B – Revised Contract Procedure Rules 
Appendix C – Summary of Changes to Contract Procedure Rules 

 
 

FF - Background papers (please contact the author of the Report for any further 
information): 

 

 

Page 14



Procurement
Strategic Plan 
2024 - 2029

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn y Gymraeg / 

This document is also available in Welsh.

www.anglesey.gov.wales

P
age 15

https://www.anglesey.gov.wales/en/Residents/Residents.aspx


Foreword

2

Welcome to our procurement strategic plan for 2024 – 2029. This key publication 
supports the delivery of our Council Plan and sets out our ambitions for better 
procurement to support the creation of an Anglesey that is healthy and prosperous where 
people can thrive.

The Council is currently facing significant challenges; demand for our services continues to 
rise as the cost of providing them is also rising.  This does not mean we are any less 
committed and effective procurement is essential.   

We will use our commercial arrangements to support local businesses as much as 
possible.  We will identify efficiencies and drive forward innovation, whilst ensuring that 
services are cost effective, and the opportunities we offer to the businesses and citizens of 
the Island are of high value and benefit.

We have a strong track record of supporting local businesses, with an average of 25% of 
contracts being awarded to suppliers on the Island. We will continue to strive to maintain, 
if not improve, this.

The strategic procurement plan builds upon the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act, the Procurement Act 2023, Social Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Act 
2023 and Health Service Procurement (Wales) Act 2024.  It aims to support our 
communities and ensure compliant spending and value for money.

Marc Jones -  Director of Function 

(Resources) – Section 151 Officer 

Cllr Robin  Williams -  Finance 

Portfolio Holder 

P
age 16



Why do we need 
a Procurement 
strategic plan?

3

The Council recognises that procurement decisions can have a major socio-economic 
and environmental implication, both locally and globally, now and for future 
generations. The associated procurement activity is critical to ensuring that not only is 
best value being obtained, but that public money is spent in a way that protects both 
people and the environment and is vital to:-

• Achieve compliance to manage risks;
• Deliver the strategic objectives of the Council Plan;
• Demonstrate the Council’s core values;
• Further sustainable development;
• Stimulate innovation;
• Avoid unnecessary costs.

The Council also recognises its responsibility to take a robust approach to ethical and 
sustainability issues, especially around modern slavery and human trafficking, which 
we are absolutely committed to preventing, within our supply chains.

The strategic plan is not intended to be an operational guide to procurement; however, 
the objectives should be applied to all our procurement activity.

£10.9bn*
Per annum

Total Local Government 
Revenue Budget 2024/25

£221.2m*
Isle of Anglesey Revenue 

Expenditure Budget 
2024/25

*Data provided by Statistics for Wales: Local Authority Revenue Budget and Capital Forecast: April 2024-to March 2025

P
age 17

https://www.gov.wales/local-authority-revenue-budget-and-capital-forecast-april-2024-march-2025


Council Plan 
2023-2028
Strategic Objectives

‘Create an Anglesey that is 
healthy and prosperous

where people can thrive.’

The Council Plan’s vision is to:-

The Council Plan is the key document serving as a focal point for decision-making at all levels; 
providing a framework to plan and drive forward priorities; shape annual spending; monitor 
performance and progress.

At its core is our desire to work with Anglesey residents, communities and partners to ensure the 
best possible services, improve the quality of life for all and create opportunities for future 
generations.

Its six main objectives reflect the key areas the Council should be focusing its efforts on:-

Council Plan 2023 to 2028 (gov.wales)

Council Plan 2023 to 2028 (gov.wales)

The Welsh 
Language

Increase the opportunities to learn 
and use the language.

Social Care and 
Wellbeing

Providing the right support at the 
right time.

Education

Ensuring an effective provision for 
today and for future generations.

Housing

Ensuring that everyone has the 
right to call somewhere home. 

Economy

Promoting opportunities to develop 
the Island’s economy.

Climate Change

Responding to the crisis, tackling 
change and working towards 
becoming a net zero organisation by 
2030.

4

P
age 18

https://www.anglesey.gov.wales/en/Council/Performance/Council-Plan/Council-Plan-2023-to-2028.aspx
https://www.anglesey.gov.wales/en/Council/Performance/Council-Plan/Council-Plan-2023-to-2028.aspx


Council Plan 2023-2028 - Values
The Council Plan 2023-28 is underpinned 
by the organisation’s core values, which are 
used to develop and guide the vision, 
strategic plans and services. 

Council Plan 2023 to 2028 (gov.wales)

Council Plan 2023 to 2028 (gov.wales)

Respect
We are respectful and 
considerate towards 
others regardless of 
our differences .

Collaborate
We work as a team, with 
our communities and 
partners, to deliver the 
best outcomes for the 
people of Anglesey.

Honesty
We are committed to 
high standards of 
conduct and integrity.

Champion the 
Council and 
the Island
We create a sense of 
pride in working for the 
Council and present a 
positive image for the 
Council and the Island.

5

P
age 19

https://www.anglesey.gov.wales/en/Council/Performance/Council-Plan/Council-Plan-2023-to-2028.aspx
https://www.anglesey.gov.wales/en/Council/Performance/Council-Plan/Council-Plan-2023-to-2028.aspx


Purpose of the Procurement Strategic Plan

7

The purpose of the Procurement Strategic Plan is to ensure the way the Council commissions and sources its services, supplies, 
and works is compliant with legislation, internal policies and processes, ethical, open, fair, transparent, and includes economic, 
social, labour and environmental factors into the process.

It will provide strategic direction by:-
• Engaging regionally and nationally to understand areas of good practice;
• Improving the quality and cost effectiveness of delivering public services to citizens;
• Be a mechanism to challenge current service arrangements and find new models for service delivery;
• Ensure contracts and spending is compliant;
• Achieve better realised savings that can be channelled back into priority services;
• Achieve added social value and wider added value to citizens through the effective use of supply chains;
• Advancing our ambitions around supporting local suppliers and keeping the Welsh pound in Wales;
• Ensure the Council complies with the:-

• Procurement Act 2023 and sub-ordinate legislation;
• Social Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Act 2023;
• Wellbeing and Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015;
• Welsh Procurement Policy Statement.

• Advancing our activities around ethical and sustainable behaviours, especially around modern slavery and the protection of the 
environment;

• Re-affirming our commitment to considering the social, economic and environmental consequences of what is procured at all 
stages of the life-cycle;

• Ensure that the Council delivers best value.

P
age 20



Baseline Data – Spend 2023/24

8

68% in Wales

101 contracts

Top 6 contracts:-

1. Highway Maintenance
2. Gas and Electricity
3. Waste Collection
4. Pavement Maintenance
5. Construction – Business Units
6. School Catering

Anglesey
25%

Rest of 
Wales

43%

Rest of the 
UK

32%

Spend per area

P
age 21



Strategic circle

6

The strategic circle identifies the plans in place to 
ensure we are able to achieve our priorities and 
objectives.   

This plan is a key strategic plan that aligns with 
the Council's Plan and contributes to the 
achievement of the strategic objectives and 
vision.

P
age 22



Strategic context

9

There is a wealth of International, UK Governmental and Welsh Governmental strategies and legislation that influences public procurement activity.

International

World Trade Organisation 
Government Procurement 

Agreement

EU-UK Trade and Cooperation 
Agreement (and other trade 

agreements)

Mutual Recognition Agreements

UN Sustainable Development Goals

UK 
Government

Procurement Legislation

Modern Slavery Act

Welsh 
Government

Social Partnership and Public 
Procurement (Wales) Act 2023

Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015

Welsh Public Procurement Policy 
Notes

Wales Procurement Policy 
Statement

National Social Value Measurement 
Framework for Wales

Local 
Government

Council Plan 2023 - 2028

Contract Procedure Rules

Procurement Strategic Plan

Social Value / Community Benefits 
Policy

Towards Net Zero Plan 2022 to 2025

Other Council Strategic Plans and 
Policies

P
age 23



Key priority areas

10

1. Leadership and culture

2. Data and commercially informed

3. Social value and environment

4. Drive compliance

5. Local economy

‘Create an Anglesey that is 
healthy and prosperous

where people can thrive.’

P
age 24



Key priority: Leadership and culture
Why is this important? What will we do? How will we do this?

11

• Lead by example and ensure that 
we promote the very best 
strategic procurement.

• Ensure that Councillors, senior 
leaders and partners are engaged 
and champion procurement 
and collaboration.

• Champion social value, sustainable 
and ethical behaviours in all that 
we do.

• Engage with strategic suppliers 
and do more pre-market 
engagement.

• Deliver early procurement and 
commercial advice to deliver 
better outcomes from projects

• Work as single "whole Council" 
team.

Good procurement can have a decisive 
impact on the outcome of 
procurements, service delivery and 
wider developments.

The culture and capability of the Council 
around good procurement is essential in 
delivering  the Procurement Strategic 
Plan and the Council’s strategic 
objectives.

Effective engagement and relationships 
with stakeholders is important to 
deliver a range of benefits, including 
improved outcomes for the public, 
added social value, reduced cost, 
reduced risk and innovation.

• Use our skills and expertise to 
develop our added value.

• Enhance reporting to better enable 
everyone to perform their roles 
effectively.

• Improve data gathering.
• Share data on performance, social 

value and risk.
• Participate in strategic regional or 

national groups.
• Clarify roles and responsibilities
• Share our successes and lessons 

learnt internally and with others.

P
age 25



Key priority: Data and commercially informed 
Why is this important? What will we do? How will we do this?

12

• Enable new processes and methods 
to be developed, allowing tendering 
to be focused on innovation and 
opportunities.

• Consider more risk-based sourcing.
• Work collaboratively across the 

region.
• Ensure suppliers improve on their 

reporting and delivery of social value 
commitments.

• Manage risks by appropriate forward 
planning, market research, early 
engagement and contingency 
planning.

• Identification of strategically 
important contracts / suppliers and 
supply chain vulnerabilities.

• Systems, procedures and staff 
delivering consistently high results.

In a landscape of reducing finance, 
increasing costs and demands, the 
Council needs to explore other 
means of reducing funding deficits 
and meeting demands. 

Improving contractor performance & 
reducing commercial failure can 
protect reputations and better 
enable the delivery of effective 
services and support to local 
communities.

The occurrence of risk, particularly 
when it could be foreseen, can have a 
devastating impact on the reputation 
and lives of residents, the quality of 
the services provided and financial 
viability.

• Provide training on:-
• contract management;
• supplier relationship management; 
• Procurement processes and 

methods.
• Review and update Contract Procedure 

Rules.
• Introduce guidance and clear processes 

in the Procurement Handbook.
• Contract reviews and supplier 

relationship management are more 
commonplace and seen as fundamental 
to creation of new opportunities.

• Focus tendering activities on innovation 
and opportunities.

• Analyse and identify spend and report 
savings.

P
age 26



Key priority: Social value and environment
Why is this important? What will we do?

How will we do this?

13

• Embrace social value and 
environmental considerations in all 
procurement activity (where 
relevant and proportionate).

• Require suppliers to work with the 
Council to reach its climate change 
and biodiversity targets.

• Ensure both financial and non-
financial outcomes are delivered by 
suppliers.

• Mainstream our social value and 
environmental priorities by working 
with stakeholders to engage with 
the suppliers through events, drop-
in sessions, meet the buyer, training 
and workshops.

• Influence suppliers to acknowledge 
and take steps to promote the 
Welsh language, in line with our 
strategic aims.

Our communities and how they 
thrive is crucial to the success of the 
Island as a place to live, work and 
enjoy.

Procurement, through the creation of 
social value, has significant 
opportunities to improve the 
economic and social wellbeing from 
public contracts over and above the 
delivery of the services directly 
required, at no extra cost.

By considering the environmental 
impact of our procurement, we can 
minimize any negative effects and 
create positive outcomes. This 
includes reducing carbon emissions 
and footprint and supporting 
biodiversity gain / nature recovery.

• Take a proactive place-based approach to 
social value and consider climate change 
and biodiversity aims in all procurement.

• Mainstream the use of social value and 
environmental tools to support 
procurement undertaken.

• Where relevant, ensure social value is a 
key performance indicator (KPI) in 
contracts and contracts managed.

• Update our website with appropriate 
guidance and signpost to support. 

• Require all suppliers to sign up to the 
Expectations in Appendix B.

• Providing training internally and 
externally where needed to mainstream 
social value and environmental 
requirements.

P
age 27



Key priority: Drive Compliance

Why is this important? What will we do? How will we do this?

14

• Ensure simplicity and speed to 
market.

• Ensure suppliers comply with 
specifications.

• Conduct robust data analysis so we 
can manage, plan, monitor and report 
on our activity.

• Use data to inform our strategic 
procurement and collaborative 
approach.

• Clearly define roles and 
responsibilities.

• Provide clear guidance.

Poor procurement and contractor 
performance can seriously damage 
reputation and ability to deliver 
effective services and support to local 
communities.

Off-contract spending can have a 
serious impact on the achievement of 
value for money, undermines 
relationships with suppliers and reduces 
cost control measures.  In addition, it 
opens up the risk of non-compliance 
with legislation, delivery of strategic 
objectives and, therefore, challenge on 
contract awards.

• Ensure contracts register is complete 
and accurate, and used to support 
forward planning and off-contract 
spend.

• Create clear policies, effective 
Contract Procedure Rules and 
provide a Procurement Handbook.

• Regular analysis and compliance 
checks, with results report to senior 
leadership.

• Providing training to staff on the 
procurement & commissioning cycle 
and introduce guidance.

• Measure performance regularly 
across the Council.

P
age 28



Key priority: Local Economy

Why is this important? What will we do? How will we do this?

15

• Provided the Council can identify a 
sufficient number of local suppliers 
with the necessary capacity and 
experience to meet its requirements, 
the Council will adopt a regional 
approach to sourcing below 
threshold  contracts.  

• When conditions are met, reserve 
contracts for businesses with a social 
purpose.

• Simplify procurement processes and 
documentation to encourage more 
small and medium-sized enterprises 
(SMEs) to bid for contracts.

By contracting with local suppliers, we 
can help stimulate the local economy. 
This keeps money circulating within the 
community, supporting local and 
creating jobs.

Sourcing goods and services locally can 
reduce the carbon footprint associated 
with transportation. This supports 
environmental sustainability objectives.

Local suppliers are often more flexible 
and responsive to the specific needs of 
the community. This can lead to better 
service delivery and increased 
resilience.

• Engage with local businesses through 
‘meet the buyer’ events and 
exhibitions.

• Providing constructive feedback to 
unsuccessful bidders to help them 
improve future bids.

• Offering resources to help local 
businesses understand the Council’s 
procurement process.

• Using Local Supplier Directories: 
Creating and maintaining directories 
of local suppliers and social 
enterprises can help authorities easily 
find and engage with local businesses.

• Identify barriers to the procurement 
process for SME’s and the voluntary 
and social enterprise sectors. 

P
age 29



Governance: monitoring and evaluation

16

This plan creates a new vision for procurement within the Council, and new measures for monitoring performance 
of:-

• Local Spend;
• SME Spend;
• Social Value Inclusion and Weighting;
• Social Value Promised;
• Social Value Delivered;
• On / Off Contract Spend;
• Exceptions / Waivers from Competition;
• Supplier Carbon Reduction Plans.

To ensure the plan is realised, we will establish robust arrangements focusing on the current 2-year action plan, 
and subsequent annual action plans thereafter.

We will report to the Leadership Team regularly on progress, and to the Executive and Governance and Audit 
Committee annually or when requested.

Our arrangements will ensure clarity, accountability, coordination and the structure to monitor progress 
effectively.

P
age 30



Appendix A: Procurement & Commissioning Cycle

17

Analyse Plan

Review Do

Specifications

Contract / SLA

Purchasing Plan

Procurement

Commissioning

Tendering & 
Contracting 
Management

Contract 
Monitoring 
& Review

Providers

User Model

Resources

Strategy 
Monitoring 
& Review

Risk Analysis

Needs Analysis

Resource Analysis

Purpose and Guidance Joint Commissioning 
Strategy

Gap Analysis

Service Design

Change 
Management

Budget and 
Market 
Management

P
age 31



Appendix B1: Supplier Expectations (Core)

18

The Council expects all of its suppliers (and their sub-contractors) to:-
• Not engage in criminal conduct or activity;
• Comply with labour and environmental laws, and not engage in human rights or environmental abuses;
• Adopt and conduct their trading activities in accordance with the Ethical Trading Initiative (ETI) Base Code, which is based on 

the International Labour Organisation's (ILO) internationally recognised Code of Labour Standards;
• Confirm their commitment to abide by the principles as set out in the Co-operative Party Charter Against Modern Slavery;
• Ensure workers are aware they may join a trade union and are not to be treated unfairly for belonging to one;
• Comply with labour and other appropriate laws (e.g. The Equality Act 2010);
• Provide fair payment for supplies, works and services through the supply chain;
• Provide workers with fair wages;
• Not to blacklist workers;
• Not use tyres over 10 years old in accordance with the Tyred Campaign;
• Act ethically and sustainably in how they manage and operate their business, including the provision of services, manufacture 

and / or delivery of supplies, or provision of works;
• Contribute to the Council’s ambition of being a net zero organisation by 2030 by helping to create a more sustainable Wales, 

UK and globe by creating a lower carbon supply chain;
• Ensure the Welsh language is acknowledged, protected and actively promoted where possible, in accordance with the 

Council's strategic objectives and relevant legislation;
• Provide sufficient guarantees that they implement appropriate technical and organisational measures to ensure their 

processing of personal data meets data protection legislation requirements and that they also implement adequate controls 
and measures to limit the impact of cyber threats to the security and integrity of the Council’s data sets.

P
age 32

https://www.ethicaltrade.org/eti-base-code
https://www.ilo.org/global/standards/lang--en/index.htm
https://party.coop/local/councillors/modern-slavery-charter/
http://www.tyred.org.uk/index


Appendix B2: Supplier Expectations (Additional)

19

Where relevant and proportionate, the Council expects all suppliers (and their sub-contractors) to:-
• Provide their services, manufacture and / or delivery of supplies, or provision of works that are accredited to recognised 

standards (or at least match the requirements of relevant accreditations without actually being accredited) across ethical 
considerations, for example:-
• International, European,or British Standards;
• EMAS;
• Good agricultural standards and practices (GlobalG.A.P.);
• Consumer facing standards (e.g. Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, Tea Sourcing Partnership);
• Furniture (FSC and PEFC); Social accountability (SA8000).

The Council also expects, where relevant and proportionate, all suppliers (and their sub-contractors) to work with us and our 
partners to:-
• Adhere to the Fair Tax Mark standards – ensure that your organisation pays the right amount of tax which funds vital public 

services and goods.

P
age 33

https://www.iso.org/home.html
https://www.en-standard.eu/store/?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIxtrio_HT3wIV7r3tCh0AjgkNEAAYASAAEgJiGPD_BwE
https://www.bsigroup.com/en-GB/
http://ec.europa.eu/environment/emas/index_en.htm
https://www.globalgap.org/uk_en/
http://www.fairtrade.org.uk/
http://www.rainforest-alliance.org/
http://www.ethicalteapartnership.org/
http://www.fsc-uk.org/en-uk
https://www.pefc.co.uk/
http://www.sa-intl.org/index.cfm?fuseaction=Page.ViewPage&PageID=1689
https://fairtaxmark.net/


Appendix B3: Baseline Data 

We will look to improve data gathering and reporting, baselining necessary data in the first 2 years,and measuring 
improvements thereafter.

This baseline will include: -

• Regional Spend (Anglesey);
• Regional Spend (Gwynedd); 
• Regional Spend (Rest of North Wales); 
• National Spend (Rest of Wales);
• Average Social Value Weighting; 
• Social Value promised;
• Social Value delivered, On / Off Contract Spend.

P
age 34



 
XX 2024 1  

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES 
 
Contents 
 
1. Introduction 
 
2. Interpretation and Definitions 
 
3. Arrangements to which these Rules do not apply 
 
4. Commissioning and Procurement and General Provisions 
 
5. Pre-Procurement 

5.1 Authority to Carry Out Procurement 
5.2 Appraisal of Procurement Activity 
5.3 Preliminary Market Engagement, Research and Consultation 
5.4 Specifications, Standards and Evaluation Criteria 
5.5 Determining Total Value 
5.6 Contracts Related to Specific Care Services 
5.7 Conflicts of Interest, Bribery and Anti-Corruption 

 
6. Invitations and Receipt of Submissions 

6.1 Single Quote (Value Band A) 
6.2 Quotations (Value Band B) 
6.3 Tenders (Value Band C) 

 
7. Evaluation and Award 

7.1 Evaluation 
7.2 Award 

 
8. Termination of a Procurement 
 
9. Framework Agreements, Open Frameworks and Dynamic Markets 
 
10. Contract Provisions and Formalities 

10.1 Contract Provisions 
10.2 Contract Formalities 

 
11. Contract Management 
  
12. Waiver of Contract Procedure Rules and Modifications to Contracts 
 12.1 Waivers 
 12.2 Modifications 
 12.3 Procedure for Waivers and Modifications 
 12.4 Emergency Provisions 
 12.5 Non-Compliance with these Rules 
 
  

Page 35



 
XX 2024 2  

Appendix 1: Definitions 

 
1. Introduction 
1.1. These Rules are standing orders made pursuant to Section 135 of the Local Government Act 

1972. Compliance with these Rules and observance of law, and the acts and regulations from 
which they emanate (in particular the principles relating to non-discrimination, equal treatment, 
mutual recognition and transparency), is mandatory for all Officers, Members, agents and 
consultants acting on the Council’s behalf. The Rules ensure that procurement activity is 
undertaken in a legally compliant, transparent fair and competitive manner. Members should not 
seek to influence Officers in the operation of any procurement process. 

 
1.2. Decisions relating to procurement are among the most important decisions that can be made by 

the Council because the money involved is public money and the Council is concerned to ensure 
that high quality Supplies, Services and the Execution of Works are procured. Efficient use of 
resources, in order to achieve Best Value is, therefore, an imperative. 

 
1.3. The highest standards of probity are required of all Officers involved in the procurement, award 

and management of Contracts. Officers shall comply with the Code of Conduct for Officers. 
 
1.4. Any failure to comply with any of the provisions of these Rules must be reported to the Director 

of Function (Resources) / Section 151 Officer and the Director of Function (Council Business) / 
Monitoring Officer. Failure by any Officer to comply with the provisions of these Rules may lead 
to disciplinary action being taken against them. 

 
1.5. These Rules shall apply to all procurement activity where the Council is to procure the provision 

of Supplies, Services or the Execution of Works (including on behalf of any partnership, 
consortium, association or body of which the Council is a member), as either a contracting 
authority or commissioner of such, regardless of the origin of funding (such as external grants, 
partnership funding, pooled or joint budgets for example). These Rules apply to schools 
maintained by the Council, including Voluntary Controlled (VC) Schools, except where amended 
by the School Funding (Wales) Regulations 2010 (“Fair Funding Scheme”) applicable to schools. 
These Rules do not apply to Foundation Schools. 

 
1.6. Where another public body is entrusted to undertake procurement activity on behalf of the 

Council, the other public body’s procurement rules will govern any such procurement activity, and 
any delegation to the other public body to accept a Quotation / Tender and award the Contract 
shall be made in writing at the time the arrangement is made, otherwise acceptance is not 
delegated outside of the Council. In all cases, the arrangement must allow the Council’s auditors 
full access to the audit trail of decisions taken. 

 
1.7. These Rules shall apply to the awarding of Contracts, Framework Agreements, Open 

Frameworks, Dynamic Markets (or similar), Concession Contracts and any other tools that may 
be awarded and / or provided for in legislation from time to time. They will be collectively referred 
to as Contracts within these Rules. 

 
1.8. These Rules should be read in conjunction with the Council’s Constitution and, in particular, the 

Financial Procedure Rules (4.8), the Council’s Scheme of Delegation, the Council’s vision, 
priorities and values, Procurement Strategic Plan and any emanating policies, relevant legislation, 
the Procurement Handbook and any other guidance (as issued by the Director of Function 
(Resources) / Section 151 Officer). 

 
1.9. Where in these Rules there is a reference to the Director of Function (Resources) / Section 151 

Officer or Director of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer that function may be 
delegated by them as reflected in the Scheme of Delegation to Officers. 
 
 
 
 

Page 36

https://www.anglesey.gov.wales/en/Council/The-Constitution/Isle-of-Anglesey-County-Council-Constitution.aspx
https://www.anglesey.gov.wales/en/Council/Performance/Council-Plan/Council-Plan-2023-to-2028.aspx
https://www.anglesey.gov.wales/en/Council/Performance/Council-Plan/Council-Plan-2023-to-2028.aspx


 
XX 2024 3  

1.10. The Procurement Handbook contains further detailed practical guidance and information on the 
above requirements and process steps which Officers must refer to when undertaking 
procurement activities. 
 

2. Interpretations and Definitions 
2.1. In the event of any conflict between English & Welsh law and these Rules and Council Policy, the 

requirements of English & Welsh law shall prevail over these Rules and Council Policy. These 
Rules shall prevail over Council Policy. 

 
2.2. Any reference to legislation, Primary or Secondary, shall include any amendments / replacements 

made from time to time. 
 
2.3. All figures specified in these Rules are inclusive of VAT. 
 
2.4. In the event of any doubt as to interpretation or application of these Rules, or as to proper 

procedure to be followed, advice should be sought from the Director of Function (Council 
Business) / Monitoring Officer. 

 
2.5. Appendix 1 sets out the meanings of key words and phrases in these Rules. 
 

3. Arrangements to which these Rules do not apply 
3.1. These Rules do not apply to the following:- 

Contracts of employment 
3.1.1. Employment or workers contracts for Officers engaged on a PAYE basis. 
3.1.2. Any other contract with an individual for the remuneration or compensation of that 

individual where they are appointed to a Public Office by the contracting authority, 
including as a:- 
(a) Non-Executive Director of a public authority, or 
(b) member of a public inquiry. 

Investments and financial securities 
3.1.3. Contracts for the provision or carrying out of an investment service or activity, or of an 

ancillary service, in relation to a financial instrument by an investment firm or a qualifying 
credit institution. 

3.1.4. Contracts for the lending of money in any currency to the Council. 
Land transactions 
3.1.5. Contracts for the acquisition or disposal of land or property or of an interest or right over 

land or property (to which the Financial Procedure Rules apply). 
Legal services 
3.1.6. Contracts authorised by the Director of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer 

for the appointment of a lawyer for the purpose of judicial proceedings or other dispute 
resolution proceedings, or advice by a lawyer in connection with, or contemplation of, 
potential judicial proceedings. 

3.1.7. Contracts for legal services provided by a person required to provide them under an 
enactment or an order of a court or tribunal (i.e. where a court requires and mandates the 
Council commissions and pays for the services of an individual stipulated by the court (e.g. 
court appointed therapist)). 

3.1.8. Contracts for the provision of arbitration, mediation or conciliation services, or other similar 
services approved by the Director of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer. 

Grant funding 
3.1.9. The awarding of grants or personal payments by the Council to individuals and / or 3rd 

parties. 
Public to public contracts 
3.1.10. Qualifying contracts between entities within the public sector (vertical and horizontal 

arrangements as defined in the Act). 
Artists and artistic works 
3.1.11. Supplies or Services with a value of up to the Threshold which are of a specialist or unique 

nature, such as antiquities, performance artists (e.g. theatre productions, comedians, 
singers, authors, etc.) and / or pre-existing works of art. 

Page 37



 
XX 2024 4  

Packages of care 
3.1.12. Services where the contract is required to maintain continuity of care and support, where 

a change in provider could potentially be harmful to service users and their families (where 
the aggregate value of contracts awarded to a single provider does not exceed the 
Threshold). Approval must be obtained from the Director of Social Care. All Contracts as 
a result of this Rule 3.1.12 are required to be entered onto the Contracts Register, and 
appropriate award notices published as required by the Act. 

3.1.13. Packages of Care, regardless of value, related to Adult Social Care Nursing, Residential 
Care Homes, as well as contracts related to Open Access Sexual Health Services. All 
Contracts as a result of this Rule 3.1.13 are required to be entered onto the Contracts 
Register, and appropriate award notices published as required by the Act. 

Provided by specific legislation 
3.1.14. Any contracts specifically excluded by legislation. 
3.1.15. Any contracts excluded by the Health Service Procurement (Wales) Act 2024, such 

disapplication of these Rules only refers to Rules 6.2, 6.3, 6.4. 
 

3.2. Nothing in the above excludes these arrangements from any other requirement of the 
Constitution. 
 

4. Commissioning and Procurement and General Provisions 
4.1. The Council’s commissioning activities should be outcome-based and focus on the desired 

change or impact rather than on inputs or processes. In doing so, the Council will be able to 
clearly demonstrate the link to the direction set out in the Council’s key policies e.g. The Council 
Plan. The Authorised Procuring Officer (APO) should confirm key policies for the relevant 
procurement with their Head of Service. 

 
4.2. Each year, the Procurement Manager, in accordance with the Act, will publish a pipeline notice 

on the Central Digital Platform setting out the Council’s commissioning and procurement 
intentions. See the Procurement Handbook for further information. 

 
4.3. A Contracts Register of all live Contracts over £30,000 shall be maintained by the Procurement 

Manager. The Contracts Register will be available on the Council’s website. 
 
4.4. APOs and Authorised Responsible Officers (AROs) maintain an up to date contract file for each 

individual contract for which they are responsible. See the Procurement Handbook for further 
information. 

 

5. Pre-Procurement 
5.1. Who has authority to carry out procurement on behalf of the Council? 

5.1.1. Any procurement activity carried out on behalf of the Council must be carried out by an 
APO with the appropriate delegated authority, as set out in the Scheme of Delegation. 

 
5.2. Appraisal of the Procurement Activity 

5.2.1. Before commencing a procurement exercise under Rule 6.1, 6.2 or 6.3, it is essential that 
the APO has identified the need and fully assessed any options for meeting those needs, 
including a risk assessment, which is part of the overall commissioning process. Reviews 
shall be undertaken at regular intervals, both during the procurement phase and also after 
contract award. Consideration shall be given to the Procurement Strategic Plan. 

 
5.2.2. The APO shall consider the matters set out in the Procurement Handbook. 
 
5.2.3. The APO shall ensure they have budgetary approval before commencing with any 

procurement activity. 
 

5.3. Preliminary Market Engagement, Research and Consultation 
5.3.1. Preliminary market engagement and / or market research is encouraged in order to ensure 

that the right requirements are procured by the Council in the best possible way. 
 

Page 38



 
XX 2024 5  

5.3.2. The APO may undertake appropriate market research and preliminary market 
engagement before commencing a procurement activity in accordance with the 
Procurement Handbook. 

 
5.3.3. For Value Band C procurements, the APO must comply with the Act on publication 

requirements on the Central Digital Platform. See Procurement Handbook for guidance. 
 

5.4. Specifications, Standards and Evaluation Criteria 
5.4.1. Before inviting Quotes or Tenders, the APO, in accordance with the Procurement 

Handbook, must prepare a specification for receipt by them of Bids from Bidders. 
 
5.4.2. Before inviting Quotes or Tenders, the APO, in accordance with the Procurement 

Handbook, must define the Selection, Shortlisting and Award Criteria as necessary and 
appropriate to the procurement activity and designed to secure an outcome giving Value 
for Money. 

 
5.5. Determining the Total Value 

5.5.1. All procurements shall be dealt with according to their total value as defined in the 
Procurement Handbook. The APO must calculate the total value of the Contract in order 
to determine what procurement activity is required and most appropriate. 

 
5.5.2. The Council should make the best use of its purchasing power by aggregating 

purchases wherever possible. Procurements shall not be deliberately split in an attempt 
to avoid the application of these Rules or the Act (in full or in part). 

 
5.5.3. Required Procurement Activity:- 
 

Value 
Band 

Value (incl. 
VAT) 

Minimum Required Procurement 
Activity 

Minimum 
Requirement for 
Advertising 

A Up to 
£11,999.99 

1 Quotation to be received in 
accordance with Rule 6.1 

N/A 

B Between 
£12,000.00 
and Threshold 

EITHER: 
Minimum of 3 Quotations to be 
received in accordance with Rule 6.2 
OR 
Tender in accordance with Rule 6.3 

 
Rule 6.2: N/A 
 
 
Rule 6.3: Sell2Wales* 

C Threshold+ Most appropriate procedure permitted 
by the Act 

Central Digital 
Platform, Sell2Wales 

*Where any advert is published for a Contract of Value Band B and C, it must also 
be published on the Central Digital Platform prior to any other or Sell2Wales advert. 
Use of Sell2Wales will ensure this is done automatically. 

 
5.5.4. Regardless of the value in Rule 5.5.3, where grant funding requires, the procurement shall 

be advertised in accordance with any published / received guidance from the grant 
provider. 

 
5.5.5. Where the Contract value falls within Value Band B, the APO shall determine which 

procurement activity should be considered by reference to the Procurement Handbook. 
 
5.5.6. Where the Contract value falls within Value Band C, the APO, with consultation with the 

Procurement Service, shall determine which is the most appropriate procedure permitted 
by the Act by reference to the Procurement Handbook. The general principles of Rules 
6.3 and 7 shall apply to procurements subject to the Act. 

 
 
 

 

Page 39



 
XX 2024 6  

5.6. Contracts Relating to Specific Care Services 
5.6.1. Until such time as the Health Service Procurement (Wales) Act 2024 and relevant 

subordinate legislation comes into force, this Rule 5.6 shall apply: the procurement and / 
or commissioning of Specific Care Services should ensure value for money is obtained, 
and require compliance with the Act.  Therefore, overarching Framework Agreements, 
Open Frameworks or Dynamic Markets (or similar arrangements) should be created and 
contracts awarded under these for as many of these Specific Care Services as possible. 
Provisions should be made within these overarching agreements to make the award 
process appropriate, efficient and cost effective to the Council, reducing any failure rates 
of awarding through these methods. 

 
5.6.2. Where Contracts for Specific Care Services cannot be awarded in accordance with Rule 

5.6.1, and time allows, they should be awarded under Rules 6.1, 6.2 or 6.3 as appropriate. 
 
5.6.3. Where Contracts for Specific Care Services cannot be awarded in accordance with Rule 

5.6.1 or 5.6.2, and a placement is sought for an individual with a registered care provider 
of their (or, where necessary, their families or carers) choice, or the decision-process 
concerning where an individual is placed involves outside partners (i.e. outside of the 
Council’s sole jurisdiction and control), they can be awarded without competition where 
approval is obtained from the Director of Social Services. The decision-process, together 
with the names of the Officers and partners concerned, and the reasons for the choice of 
provider, should be evidenced in the individual’s care record. Where the value exceeds 
the Threshold, justifications, as provided for in the Act, must also be demonstrated as 
being met prior to seeking Director of Social Services’ approval. 

 
5.6.4. Special Education Needs and Disability (SEND): Where Contracts for Specific Care 

Services related to SEND cannot be awarded in accordance with Rule 5.6.1 or 5.6.2, and 
the decision-process concerning where an individual is placed involves outside partners 
(i.e. outside of the Council’s sole jurisdiction and control), they can be awarded without 
competition where approval is obtained from the Director of Social Services. The decision-
process, together with the names of the Officers and partners concerned, and the reasons 
for the choice of provider, should be evidenced in the individual’s care record. Where the 
value exceeds the Threshold, justifications, as provided for in the Act, must also be 
demonstrated as being met prior to seeking Director of Social Services’ approval. 

 
5.6.5. Any other instances require a Waiver, in accordance with Rule 12. 
 
5.6.6. All Contracts with value in excess of £30,000 awarded as a result of this Rule 5.6 are 

required to be entered onto the Contracts Register, and appropriate Transparency Notices 
or Contract Award Notices published, as required by the Act. 

 
5.7. Conflicts of Interest, Anti-Bribery and Corruption 

5.7.1. The Council’s reputation with regards to procurement activity is important, and should be 
safeguarded from any imputation of dishonesty or corruption. All Officers are reminded of 
their responsibilities in relation to gifts, hospitality and conflicts of interest and should 
ensure they comply with the obligations set out in the relevant Codes of Conduct and any 
relevant policies, guidance or strategies relating to bribery, fraud and corruption issued or 
endorsed by the Council from time to time. 

 
5.7.2. Any Officer must declare any conflict of interest which could influence their judgement in 

relation to procurement activity. This includes at preliminary market engagement, 
specification writing, evaluation and award decision stages. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 40

https://www.anglesey.gov.wales/en/Council/Councillors-MS-MPs/Code-of-Conduct.aspx


 
XX 2024 7  

5.7.3. For above Threshold procurements, the APO must, in accordance with the Procurement 
Handbook, compile a Conflicts Risk Assessment and Register, and keep this updated 
throughout the procurement process. 

 

6. Invitations and Receipt of Submissions 
6.1. Single Quote (Value Band A) 

6.1.1. A single quotation by any means is acceptable in accordance with this Rule 6.1. This 
includes screen shots of catalogues, pricing from websites, etc., in lieu of a formal 
quotation. 

 

6.1.2. The Council should seek to maximise the impact of its spending on the local economy 
and, therefore, where possible, the Quote should be obtained from a suitable local 
Economic Operator using the following tiered approach: 1. Anglesey, 2. Gwynedd, 3. North 
Wales, 4. Wales, 5. Elsewhere. 

 

6.1.3. Nothing prevents an APO following Rule 6.2 if there are doubts around securing value for 
money. 

 

6.2. Quotations (Value Band B) 
6.2.1. A minimum of three written quotations must be received in accordance with this Rule 6.2. 
 

Pre-Quotation Activity 
6.2.2. The actions in Rule 5 must be followed before commencing with this Rule 6.2. 
 

Request for Quotes 
6.2.3. The Procurement Service must be consulted prior to any Quotation being invited. 
 

6.2.4. For Contracts for Supplies, screen shots of relevant information (catalogues, pricing from 
websites, etc.) are acceptable in lieu of requesting formal quotations. For all other 
Contracts, a request for Quotation is required. 

 

6.2.5. The Council should seek to maximise the impact of its spending on the local economy 
and, therefore, where possible, the Quote should be obtained from suitable local Economic 
Operators using the following tiered approach: 1. Anglesey, 2. Gwynedd, 3. North Wales, 
4. Wales, 5. Elsewhere. See Procurement Handbook for guidance. 

 

6.2.6. Invites must be sent through Sell2Wales. To send invites via any other means, the 
Procurement Manager must be consulted and provide approval. 

 

6.2.7. The request for a Quote shall make reference to, or include, information as set out in the 
Procurement Handbook. 

 

6.2.8. Nothing prevents an APO following Rule 6.3 if there are doubts around who to invite to 
Quote or the obtaining of value for money. 

 

Submission and Receipt of Quotes 
6.2.9. Quotes must be received via Sell2Wales, and will remain unopened until the specified 

closing date and time has passed. To receive Quotes via any other means, the 
Procurement Manager must be consulted and provide approval.  

 

6.2.10. Any Quote (including all associated documents) submitted after the specified date and 
time for submission of Quotes shall only be accepted or considered by the Council in 
exceptional circumstances, and only with agreement from the Director of Function 
(Council Business) / Monitoring Officer. 

 

6.3. Tender (Value Bands B and C) 
6.3.1. For the purposes of this Rule, for Value Band C procurement activity, reference to Tender 

includes reference to requests to participate, and submissions at the various stages that 
may form part of that procurement exercise). 

Page 41



 
XX 2024 8  

Pre-Tender Activity 
6.3.2. The actions in Rule 5 must be followed before commencing with this Rule 6.3. 

 
Invitation To Tender 
6.3.3. The Procurement Service must be consulted prior to any Tender being advertised. The 

Procurement Service will be responsible for approving and releasing any adverts, notices, 
and documentation. 

 
6.3.4. All Tender opportunities will be advertised by the APO on Sell2Wales and will be 

conducted through Sell2Wales. For Value Band B procurements, the Procurement 
Handbook should be consulted for any allowable restrictions that may be placed on 
eligibility of Bidders. For Value Band C procurements, the APO must comply with the Act 
on publication requirements on the Central Digital Platform. See Procurement Handbook 
for guidance. 

 

6.3.5. The Invitation to Tender shall make reference to, or include, information as set out in the 
Procurement Handbook. 

 
6.3.6. Where security requirements are considered necessary, the APO and Director of Function 

(Resources) / Section 151 Officer (or their nominated representative) will agree the 
acceptable form of security with the Contractor. 

 
Submission and Receipt of Tenders 
6.3.7. Tenders must be received via Sell2Wales, and will remain unopened until the specified 

closing date and time has passed. 
 
6.3.8. Any Tender (including all associated documents) submitted after the specified date and 

time for submission of Tenders shall only be accepted or considered by the Council in 
exceptional circumstances, and only with agreement from the Director of Function 
(Council Business) / Monitoring Officer. 

 

7. Evaluation and Award 
7.1. Evaluation 

7.1.1. For the purposes of this Rule, reference to Tender includes for Value Band B and C 
procurement activity, reference to requests to participate and submissions at the various 
stages that may form part of that procurement exercise. 

 
7.1.2. The APO shall form an evaluation team, in accordance with the guidance in the 

Procurement Handbook, with responsibility for evaluating Quotes / Tenders with 
representation from other services as they consider appropriate in the circumstances. 

 
7.1.3. The APO shall follow the guidance in the Procurement Handbook regarding conflicts of 

interest of the evaluation panel and seek approval from the Director of Function (Council 
Business) / Monitoring Officer that the officer declaring the interest be permitted to 
continue to participate in the evaluation panel. 

 
7.1.4. All Quotes / Tenders must be checked for compliance with the Specification, terms and 

conditions and other minimum essential requirements as may be necessary from time to 
time prior to evaluation of Quotes / Tenders. Any Quote / Tender that does not meet these 
minimum standards should be disqualified and this decision communicated to the relevant 
Bidder prior to evaluation of the remaining Quotes / Tenders / proceeding to the next stage. 

 

7.1.5. If arithmetical errors are found, these should be notified to the Bidder, who should be 
requested to confirm and correct any computational errors or, for all other errors, to confirm 
or withdraw their Quote / Tender. 

 

7.1.6. Any significant error made by a Bidder in a Quotation / Tender in pricing, delivery or other 
matter relating to the performance of the contract, should be notified to the Bidder, who 
should be requested to confirm or withdraw their Quote / Tender. 

Page 42



 
XX 2024 9  

 
 

 

7.1.7. Clarification may be sought from Bidders on any aspect of their Quote / Tender. These 
clarifications should be documented, and will form part of the Contract with the winning 
Bidder. Clarifications are not to be used as an opportunity for receipt of additional or new 
information by a Bidder, and they are not to be used to commence negotiations. 

 

7.1.8. In the event that an abnormally low Quotation / Tender is received, the APO must take 
advice from the Procurement Manager on how to proceed. Guidance is provided in the 
Procurement Handbook. Any decision to reject a Quotation / Tender where it is established 
it is abnormally low must be approved by the Director of Service with responsibility for the 
Contract in consultation with the Director of Function (Resources) / Section 151 Officer. 

 

7.1.9. The evaluation should be recorded and saved in accordance with the guidance in the 
Procurement Handbook. Officers must ensure transparency and fairness in the evaluation 
process. 

 

7.2. Award 
7.2.1. Where Rule 6.2 has been followed and the minimum number of bids required have not 

been received, the Procurement Manager must be consulted for approval to proceed. If 
approval is not given, a new procurement exercise must be undertaken. See guidance in 
the Procurement Handbook. 

 
7.2.2. Approval to award the Contract must be given in accordance with the Council’s Scheme 

of Delegation and Finance Procedure Rules. 
 

7.2.3. Once approval to award is granted, the APO shall notify unsuccessful Bidders of the 
decision to award, and provide any feedback they consider necessary. For Value Band C 
Contracts, the APO must comply with the Act on content of such communications and 
associated timescales. See Procurement Handbook for guidance. 

 

7.2.4. Where the Contract total value is in excess of £30,000, the APO will update the Contracts 
Register with the required information. 

 
7.2.5. For Value Band C procurements, the APO must comply with the Act on publication 

requirements on the Central Digital Platform. See Procurement Handbook for guidance. 
 
7.2.6. The form of Contract should be in accordance with Rule 10. 
 

8. Termination of Procurement 
8.1 For Value Band C procurements, where the procurement is stopped and terminated, the APO 

must comply with the Act on publication requirements on the Central Digital Platform. See 
Procurement Handbook for guidance. 
 

9. Calling Off from Framework Agreements, Open Frameworks or Dynamic Markets (or 
similar arrangements) 

9.1. A Contract of any value may be awarded under a suitable pre-existing Framework Agreement, 
Open Framework or Dynamic Market (or similar arrangement) without following the requirements 
of Rules 6.1, 6.2 or 6.3. The Procurement Handbook provides information around these 
arrangements and when they can be used. 
 

10. Contract Provisions and Formalities 
10.1. Contract Provisions 

10.1.1. All Contracts must be in writing and must set out the parties’ obligations, rights and risk 
allocations. 
 
 

Page 43

https://www.anglesey.gov.wales/en/Council/The-Constitution/Isle-of-Anglesey-County-Council-Constitution.aspx


 
XX 2024 10  

10.1.2. Where possible, these shall be entered into on the Council’s standard terms and 
conditions, which shall be included with each purchase order and Request for Quotation 
or Invitation to Tender, or on the terms of the relevant Framework Agreement, Open 
Framework or Dynamic Market (or similar arrangement) that is being utilised. 

 
10.1.3. All Contracts in writing shall specify or contain (as a minimum):- 

(a) the Services, Supplies or Works to be provided; 
(b) the price to be paid, with a statement of discounts or other deductions; 
(c) the time or times within which the contract is to be performed; 
(ch) that all relevant health and safety legislation and codes of practice must be complied 

with and that any specific health and safety requirements set out in the Invitation to 
Tender or Invitation to Negotiate required prior to contract award have been 
satisfied; 

(d) a clause to secure that, should the Contractor fail to deliver the Services, Supplies 
or Works within the time or times specified in the contract, the Council shall be 
entitled to terminate the contract either wholly or in part and recover from the 
Contractor any additional costs arising from the obtaining of any suitable 
replacement; 

(dd) a clause empowering the Council to terminate the contract and recover from the 
Contractor the amount of any loss resulting from such termination, if the Contractor, 
or any person acting on their behalf in relation to the obtaining or execution of the 
agreement or any other agreement with the Council, have committed any offence 
under the Bribery Act 2010, or shall have given any fee or reward the receipt of 
which is an offence under Section 117(2) and (3) of the Local Government Act 
1972; 

(e) a clause requiring the Contractor to provide information to the Council in order for 
the Council to fulfil its obligations under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and / 
or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004; 

(f) a clause requiring the Contractor to comply with Data Protection requirements, 
standards  and legislation in order for the Council to fulfil its obligations and 
compliance with the same; 

(ff) such special conditions relating to the performance of the agreement which had 
been set out in the procurement documents relating to economic, innovation-related, 
environmental, social or employment-related considerations;  

(g) a clause empowering the Council to terminate the contract and recover from the 
Contractor the amount of any loss resulting from such termination, if:- 

(i) the agreement has been subject to a substantial modification which would 
have required a new procurement procedure under Legislation; or 

(ii) the Contractor has, at the time of award, been in one of the situations 
referred to in Legislation requiring the Contractor to have been excluded 
from the procurement procedure; or 

(iii) the agreement should not have  been  awarded  to  the Contractor in view of 
a serious infringement of the obligations under the relevant law; or 

(iv) the Contractor has been convicted of an offence under the Blacklisting 
Regulations; or 

(v) the Contractor is involved in any activity associated with modern day slavery; 
(ng)  a clause that invoices submitted for payment are considered in a timely fashion by 

the Council and that payment shall be made to the Contractor under the contract 
within the maximum period of 30 days from the date when the relevant invoice 
is regarded as valid and undisputed or such other shorter period as may be agreed 
by the Contractor as required by any Council policy;  

(h) a clause in which the Contractor is obliged to impose equivalent terms to those in 
(g) above in any sub-contract for part of the public contract which it has with the 
Council. 

 
 
 
 

Page 44



 
XX 2024 11  

10.1.4. Where an appropriate British Standard Specification or British Standard Code of Practice 
issued by the British Standards Institution or an equivalent European or International 
Standard is current at the date of the tender, every contract shall require that Services, 
Supplies or Works used or supplied and all workmanship shall be of a standard at least in 
accordance with the standard, or such higher standard as may be specified in the 
agreement. 

 
10.2. Contract Formalities 

10.2.1. A Purchase Order may constitute the form of Contract between Council and Contractor 
for a contract awarded following Rule 6.1. 

 
10.2.2. All other Contracts with a value below Threshold must be signed by the ARO authorised 

to award the agreement under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation and the Contractor. 
 
10.2.3. Electronic signatures are acceptable providing there is a clear audit trail and it is 

unambiguous of the terms which apply. 
 
10.2.4. Sealing: Notwithstanding Rules 10.2.1, 10.2.2 and 10.2.3, all Contracts are subject to the 

requirements of Article 14 – Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters) 2.14.4.2 for sealing. 
 

11. Contract Management 
11.1. All Contracts must have a Contract Manager for the entirety of the arrangement. In the event that 

there is no named Contract Manager, the APO will fulfil the role of Contract Manager. 
 
11.2. The Contract Manager will be responsible for reviewing, monitoring and evaluating the contract 

to ensure that its provisions and the Services, Supplies and Execution of Works within it are being 
followed and performed as they should be. Further guidance is in the Procurement Handbook. 

 
11.3. The APO must comply with the Act on publication requirements on the Central Digital Platform 

regarding Contract performance and upon Contract expiry or earlier termination. See 
Procurement Handbook for guidance. 
 

12. Waiver of Contract Procedure Rules and Modifications to Contracts 
12.1. Waiver of Contract Procedure Rules 

12.1.1. In limited circumstances, it may be necessary to seek a waiver from the Rules, and 
guidance from the Procurement Manager must be sought before any agreements are 
entered into. 

 
12.1.2. A Waiver cannot be given where this would contravene the Act, and a Waiver cannot be 

given retrospectively. 
 
12.1.3. For the avoidance of doubt, award of contracts without competition, as provided for by 

Rule 5.6, do not require a Waiver in accordance with this Rule 12.1. 
 
12.1.4. Waivers will only be considered in the below circumstances. For value Band C Contracts, 

the justifications as set out in the Act must also be met in addition to the below:- 
a) The arrangement is a permitted exemption from the requirement for competition 

contained in English and Welsh law; 
b) The requirements are necessary in circumstances of extreme urgency or 

unforeseeable emergency involving risks to persons; 
c) The requirements are necessary in circumstances of extreme urgency or 

unforeseeable emergency involving risks to property or serious disruption to Council 
services, and the circumstances for the urgency are not attributable to the Council; 

ch) Proprietary or patented Supplies or Services are proposed to be purchased which, 
in the opinion of the APO, are only obtainable from one person, and it can be 
demonstrated that no reasonably satisfactory alternative to those proprietary or 
patented Supplies is available; 
 

Page 45



 
XX 2024 12  

d) The APO can demonstrate that no genuine competition can be obtained in respect 
of the purchase of particular Supplies, Services or Execution of Works (e.g. repairs 
and parts); 

dd) The APO is satisfied that the Services or Execution of Works are of such a specialist 
nature that they can only be carried out by one person (e.g. statutory undertakers); 

e) Supplies are proposed to be purchased by, or on behalf of, the Council at a public 
auction; 

f) Where a service review includes the intention to co-terminate relevant Contracts; 
ff) The purchase of an art or museum specimen or to meet the specific requirements 

of an art or cultural event which cannot be competitive due to the nature of the 
requirement and Rule 3.1.11. does not apply; 

g) The arrangement is in relation to time limited grant funding from an external body, 
where the time limitations will not allow a competitive process to be completed and 
where the grant conditions allow this (only available for Value Band B and C 
Contracts); 

ng)   Other exemptional circumstances (only available for Value Band B or C Contracts). 
 

12.1.5. The form of contract entered into subject to Waiver approval being granted should be in 
accordance with Rule 10. 

 

12.2. Modifications to Contracts 
12.2.1. Contracts may be modified during their term without a new procurement activity in the 

circumstances set out in this Rule 12.2. Modification means any change to the Contract 
from that which was executed, including novation / transfer, and extensions to term. 
Guidance from the Procurement Manager must be sought before any agreements are 
entered into. 

 

12.2.2. Modification approval cannot be given where this would contravene Legislation, and 
Modification approval cannot be given retrospectively. 

  
12.2.3. For Contracts in Value Bands A and B, modifications will only be considered in the 

following circumstances:- 
a) Modification was provided in the original procurement documents; 
b) Where Modifications were not provided for in the original procurement documents and:- 

12.2.3.b.1. are necessary in circumstances of extreme urgency or unforeseeable 
emergency involving risks to persons; 

12.2.3.b.2. are necessary in circumstances of extreme urgency or unforeseeable 
emergency involving risks to property or serious disruption to Council 
services and the circumstances for the urgency are not attributable to the 
Council; 

12.2.3.b.3. the circumstances giving rise to the Modification could not reasonably have 
been foreseen by the Council before the award of the Contract, and the 
Modification does not alter the overall nature of the Contract, and would not 
increase the estimated value of the Contract by more than 100% from its 
original value; 

12.2.3.b.4. the Modification is for the same Supplies, Services or Execution of Works 
that are the subject matter of the Contract and using a different Contractor 
would result in deliverables that are different from, or incompatible with, 
those already provided for in the Contract, and would result in 
disproportionate difficulties in operation / maintenance or other significant 
inconvenience and substantial duplication of cost for the Council, and the 
Modification would not increase the estimated value of the Contract by 
more than 100% from its original value; 

12.2.3.b.5. the Modification is for a novation or assignment of the Contract to a different 
Contractor due to corporate restructuring or similar circumstances. 

 

12.2.4. For Contracts in Value Band C (or Contracts that will become a Value Band C Contract 
should the Modification be approved), the justifications as set out in Legislation must be 
met. 

Page 46



 
XX 2024 13  

12.2.5. Where a Modification does not meet the above circumstances, either a Waiver must be 
sought under the justifications of Rule 12.1, or a new procurement activity will be required. 

 

12.3. Procedure for Requesting a Waiver or Modification 
12.3.1. To apply for a Wavier or a Modification, the APO must complete a report in the manner 

provided by the Director of Function (Resources) / Section 151 Officer and seek 
consultation on the contents with a finance representative, as nominated by the Director 
of Function (Resources) / Section 151 Officer, and Procurement Manager. The 
Procurement Handbook provides the report and details on the procedure to be followed. 

 

12.3.2. Where the Waiver / Modification is for a Value Band C Contract, the Deputy Monitoring 
Officer (or their nominated representative) must also be consulted on the report prior to its 
submission for approval. 

 

12.3.3. No commitments should be made to the Contractor / potential Contractor prior to 
authorisation of the report. 

 

12.3.4. The Council Executive must approve Waivers under justification 12.1.4.k. 
 

12.3.5. The Director of Service responsible for the Contract shall approve Modifications under 
justification 12.2.3.a. 

 

12.3.6. The Director of Function (Resources) / Section 151 Officer and Director of Function 
(Council Business) / Monitoring Officer must approve Waivers and Modifications under all 
other justifications. 

 

12.3.7. The APO must comply with the Act on publication requirements on the Central Digital 
Platform. See Procurement Handbook for guidance. 

 

12.4. Emergency Approvals 
12.4.1. In the event of circumstances arising where a Waiver or Modification request cannot 

expediently be approved through the normal process as required by Rule 12.3, the 
Director of Service responsible for the Contract and Director of Function (Finance) / 
Section 151 Officer, jointly are authorised, notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere 
in these Contract Procedure Rules or the Financial Procedure Rules, to carry out or 
contract for the immediate carrying out of the necessary Services or Execution of Works, 
or delivery of the necessary Supplies, or to do anything else necessary on behalf of the 
Council. 

 

12.4.2. Where the Contract is a Value Band C Contract, the necessary justifications as provided 
for by Legislation must still be met, and the necessary notices published on the Central 
Digital Platform by the APO. 

 

12.4.3. Such exercise of emergency measures shall be subject to a total limit of expenditure which 
must be less than the Threshold. 

 

12.5. Non-Compliance with these Contract Procedure Rules 
12.5.1. If it comes to the notice of an ARO that there has been non-compliance with these Contract 

Procedure Rules in respect of any Contract for which they are responsible, they shall notify 
the Director of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer without delay. 

 

12.5.2. The notification must specify the circumstances relating to the non-compliance with these 
Contract Procedure Rules and measures to be taken to avoid re-occurrence. 

 

12.5.3. The Director of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer shall take such action as 
they deem necessary. 

 

12.5.4. The ARO shall supply the Council’s internal auditor with a copy of any notice of non-
compliance. 

Page 47



 
XX 2024 14  

Appendix 1: Definitions 
 

“The Act” 
The Procurement Act 2023 and any relevant sub-ordinate legislation enacted by the UK Parliament or the 
Senedd from time to time. 
 
“Anglesey” 
The territory consisting of the Isle of Anglesey County Council. 
 
“APO” 
The Authorised Procuring Officer is any officer within a directorate of the Council who has delegated 
authority to undertake, initiate and oversee procurement activity for their directorate and whom is 
responsible for decisions connected to the award of a contract in connection with these Rules. 
 
“ARO” 
The Authorised Responsible Officer is any Officer of the Leadership Team or Heads of Service or other 
such person who has been given authority under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. All ARO’s shall be 
jointly responsible with their APO’s for ensuring that appropriate training is received, refreshed and 
updated. 
 
“Award Criteria” 
The forwards looking criteria used to assess how a Bidder will perform the requirement set out. It will take 
the form of either Most Advantageous Tender (MAT) or price only. Where MAT is being used, it will include 
a split between price and non-price. Non-price elements may include (this is not exhaustive) a focus on 
what will be done, how it will be done, in what timescale it will be done, the resources required deliver it. 
 
“Best Value” 
Has the same meaning as that defined in the Local Government Act 1999, as amended from time to time. 
 
“Bidder” 
Is any Economic Operator that submits a Quote or Tender. 
 
“Call-Off” 
A Contract / order made under a pre-existing Framework Agreement, Open Framework or Dynamic Market 
(or similar agreement). 
 
“Central Digital Platform” 
The UK wide platform for publishing a variety of notices set out in legislation for procurement and potential 
procurement activity and contract management activity.  
 
“Concessions” 
The granting of a right (exclusive of otherwise) to an Economic Operator to exploit works or services 
provided for their own gain, with or without payment. Further guidance on Concessions can be found in 
the Procurement Handbook. 
 
“Contract” 
A legally binding agreement for pecuniary interest between the Council and the Contractor for the provision 
of the relevant Supplies, Services or Execution of Works to the Council, and which incorporates the terms 
and conditions under which the Supplies, Services or Execution of Works will be provided. 
 
“Contractor” 
The Economic Operator who the Council enters into a Contract with following the submission of a Quote 
or Tender and who is appointed by the Council to provide the Supplies, Services or Execution of Works, 
or Concession Contract. They may also be referred to as ‘supplies’, ‘concessionaires’, ‘providers’ or 
‘service providers’. 
 
 
 

Page 48



 
XX 2024 15  

“Contracts Register” 
A register held and maintained by the Procurement Service containing details of contracts entered into by 
the Council which have a value of £30,000 or more. 
 
“Constitution” 
The constitution of the Council. 
 
“Dynamic Market” 
As defined in the Act. 
 
“Economic Operator” 
Any natural or legal person or public entity or group of such persons and / or entities, including any 
temporary association of undertakings, which offers the Supplies, Services or Execution of Works on the 
market. 
 
“Framework Agreement” 
As defined in the Act. 
 
“Invitation to Quote / Tender” 
An invitation issued by the Council to Bidders to submit a Quote or Tender for the provision of Supplies, 
Sevices or Execution of Works, or a Concession Contract in accordance with the Specification. 
 
“Legislation” 
Either the Act or the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 or Concession Contracts Regulations 2016, as is 
appropriate. 
 
“Member(s)” 
Elected officials with a seat in the Council. 
 
“Modification” 
Any variation to a Contract, Framework Agreement, Open Framework, Dynamic Market or other 
agreement, including extension. 
 
“Most Advantageous Offer” 
See Most Advantageous Tender. 
 
“Most Advantageous Tender” 
As defined in the Act. 
 
“Mutual Recognition” 
The recognition of the validity and comparability with UK standards, certificates and qualifications of non 
UK standards, certifications and qualifications from Treaty State Suppliers. Treaty State Suppliers being 
defined by Government. 
 
“Non-Executive Director” 
An individual appointed to an organisation’s board of directors who is not employed by the organisation. 
They act as independent advisors or directors to help the organisation achieve its goals. 
 
“Novation” 
The discharge of the rights and obligations between contracting parties and a recreation of them in a new 
contract between a third party (replacing an original contracting party) and the remaining contracting 
parties to the original contract. 
 
“Officer” 
Any employee of the Council which shall include any person engaged by the Council to act as an agent or 
consultant on its behalf. 
 
 

Page 49



 
XX 2024 16  

“Open Framework” 
As defined in the Act. 
 
“Original Agreement Value” 
The estimated or actual value (whichever is most appropriate) of any agreement over its intended 
maximum duration, including all options to extend, and all optional additional Services, Supplies or 
Execution of Works provided for. 
 
“Primary Legislation” 
Acts of Parliament. 
 
“Procurement Handbook” 
The guidance which the Director of Function (Resources) / Section 151 Officer shall issue from time to 
time to set out the procedure and the Council’s objectives in compliance with these Rules. Procurement 
Handbook. 
 
“Procurement Manager” 
The Procurement Manager, or similar role with equivalent experience and seniority within the Procurement 
Service. These actions may be taken by a more senior role within the team. These actions may be taken 
by a more junior role within the team, subject to delegation. 
 
“Public Office” 
A position of authority or service involving responsibility to the public. 
 
“Quote” 
A formal offer submitted by a Bidder to supply Supplies, Services or the Execution of Work, or operate a 
Concession Contract at a defined price. 
 
“Rules” 
These Contract Procedure Rules. 
 
“Scheme of Delegation” 
The scheme identified within the Council’s constitution which delegates powers and duties to Council 
Officers under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 and all other powers enabling such 
delegation necessary for the discharge of the Council’s functions. 
 
“Secondary Legislation” 
Statutory Instruments, Regulations or other Orders. 
 
“Selection Criteria” 
The criteria used at either selection stage or award stage to determine whether an applicant or Bidder 
meets any minimum requirements. Selection Criteria are evaluated on a pass or fail basis. In addition to 
determining compliance with any minimum standards / actions, etc., they look backwards at the applicant 
or Bidder’s capacity, capability, competency, skills and past projects. 
 
“Sell2Wales” 
The Council’s e-Procurement system. A Wales wide platform for advertising and managing procurement 
activity for the Council. 
 
“Services” 
The time, effort and expertise required by the Council, from time to time, and supplied by a Contractor. 
 
“Shortlisting Criteria” 
The criteria used at selection stage to differentiate between applicants to determine who should be 
shortlisted to invite to tender. These can only be used for above Regulation Threshold procurements. 
Shortlisting Criteria are scored to enable differentiation between applicants. They look backwards at the 
applicant or Bidder’s capacity, capability, competency, skills and past projects. 
 

Page 50



 
XX 2024 17  

“Specific Care Services” 
It is recognised that, either because of service user choice or the nature of the market for specialist 
placements,  competitive procurement processes may not be possible for some contracts for personal 
social services for individuals as assessed as requiring services under the National Assistance Act 1948, 
the NHS and Community Care Act 1990, the Children Act 1998, the Children’s and Families Act 2014, The 
Care Act 2015 and the Welsh Government Special Educational Needs Code of Practice for Wales and 
any successor legislation. 
 
“Specification” 
The outputs, outcomes and the scope and nature of the Supplies, Services or Execution of Works or 
Concession Contract required by the Council from a procurement activity. 
 
“Standing Orders” 
Written rules formulated, agreed and codified by the Council to regulate Council business, operation and 
procedures. 
 
“Supplies” 
An inherently useful tangible item required by the Council from time to time, whether through purchase, 
lease, rental, hire-purchase or disposal. 
 
“Tender” 
A formal offer submitted by a Bidder to the Council at a stated price in response to a Specification. 
 
“Threshold” 
The financial threshold identified by the Act, as amended from time to time, and, where applicable, requires 
procurement activity to be subject to the Act. The threshold is contained in the Procurement Handbook. 
 
“TUPE” 
The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006, as amended from time to 
time. 
 
“VAT” 
Value Added Tax. 
 
“Waiver” 
The release of the obligations to comply with these Rules. 
 
“Works / Execution of Works” 
The provision of physical activity which is directed toward the production or accomplishment of something 
by the Contractor for the Council, including execution or both design and execution. 

 

Page 51



 
Isle of Anglesey County Council Contract Procedure Rules 

Review 
Summary of Changes 

 

 
 

 

Page 1 of 8 
 

Summary of Changes 
 
The Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) have been significantly altered in appearance. These changes are 
proposed to take account of changes in legislation (both current and future), facilitate ease of finding 
information, strengthen a number of provisions and move non-essential information and guidance into a 
Procurement Handbook. 
 
The Procurement Handbook is not available in a draft at the time of preparing this summary document. 
 
These changes have meant removal of certain rules and addition of some new rules / thresholds. The detail 
of the reasoning behind these are set out below:- 
 
Removals from CPRs 
 

Current 
Rule 
Number 

What it says Why it has been removed 

4.9.2.3 Partnerships Not a procurement matter and dealt with under 
Financial Procedure Rules. Procurement matters 
are dealt within new Rule 1. 

4.9.7.5 Means of returning Tenders This is outdated and not current practice. 

4.9.3.2.4 Waiver / Exception justification for 
additional work by the same contractor 
if they did an earlier phase and this has 
been previously identified 

It is not clear what is meant by “previously 
identified”. This encourages complacency by 
Services, and allows poor planning, and 
effectively circumventing the aggregation rules. 
 
Anything that was planned for properly should be 
incorporated in some way into the procurement / 
contract, and would be a provided Modification. 
Anything else would be a non-provided for 
modification and the relevant grounds used. 
 
Anything else should be re-competed as it clearly 
was not considered detrimental enough to have 
planned for. 

4.9.3.2.7 Waiver / Exemption for: Art and artistic 
works (below Threshold) 

Commissioning of poets (literature festivals), 
artists, pre-existing works of art etc. cannot be 
tendered, and there is specific justifications for 
non-competition in the Act, so has been included 
in the exempt list for application of CPRs. 
 
Anything above Threshold will be able to be 
Waived under new Rule 12.1.4.i). 
 
 
 

Page 52



 
Isle of Anglesey County Council Contract Procedure Rules 

Review 
Summary of Changes 

 

 
 

 

Page 2 of 8 
 

Current 
Rule 
Number 

What it says Why it has been removed 

4.9.6 £10k to £30k Procurement This has been removed and value subsumed into 
new Value Band B (£12k to Threshold). 

 
 
Additions to CPRs 
 

New 
Rule 
Number 

What it says Why it has been added 

1.9 Statement of delegation below Director 
of Functions (Section 151 Officer and 
Monitoring Officer) 

To be clear that, through planned delegation, this 
role may be delegated when considered 
necessary (e.g. during periods of leave). This is 
considered necessary given the changes made 
around approvals for Waivers and Modifications. 

1.10 Addition of a Procurement Handbook 
and that this should be read in 
conjunction with the CPRs 

The Procurement Handbook will be “issued” by 
Director of Function (Resources) / Section 151 
Officer, and will be a mandatory tool to aid and 
guide Officers on what they need to do for 
various procurements. 
 
It allows the CPRs to focus on “the Rules” and 
minimum essential requirements, with the 
Handbook focussing on guidance and best 
practice approaches to securing value for money. 

2 & 
Appendix 
1 

Interpretations and Definitions To ensure that the appropriate people only 
interpret the CPRs, and definitions are made clear 
for all those reading the CPRs. 
 
Alignment with legislation around values (i.e. 
move from Net to Gross). 

4.2 Creation of a pipeline of commissioning 
/ procurement intentions 

To support compliance with Welsh National 
Procurement Policy Statement and legislation. 

3 
 
 
3.1.2 
 
 
3.1.3-4 
 
 
 
 
 

Arrangements to which these rules do 
not apply:- 
 
Non-Executive Director appointments 
and public enquiries 
 
Financial securities and investments 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Exempt from application of the Act so should be 
exempt from CPRs. 
 
Exempt from application of the Act so should be 
exempt from CPRs. 
 
 
 

Page 53



 
Isle of Anglesey County Council Contract Procedure Rules 

Review 
Summary of Changes 

 

 
 

 

Page 3 of 8 
 

New 
Rule 
Number 

What it says Why it has been added 

3.1.6-8 
 
 
3.1.10 
 
 
 
 
 
3.1.11 
 
 
 
 
 
3.1.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.1.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.1.14 

Legal Services related to litigation 
 
 
Certain contracts between the public 
sector 
 
 
 
 
Artists or artistic works (below 
Threshold) 
 
 
 
 
Continuation of care where change 
could be harmful to user (Below 
Regulation Threshold) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adult Social Care Nursing, Residential 
Care Homes, and Open Access Sexual 
Health Services 
 
 
 
 
 
Anything specifically excluded by 
legislation 

Exempt from application of the Act so should be 
exempt from CPRs. 
 
Taking principles set out in the Act, genuine co-
operation agreements should be excluded. 
 
 
 
 
Commissioning of poets (literature festivals), 
artists, pre-existing works of art etc. cannot be 
tendered, and there is specific justifications for 
non-competition in the Act so, for below 
Threshold, should be exempt from CPRs. 
 
Recognition of the potential for subordinate 
legislation to the Health Services Procurement 
(Wales) Act 2024 to replicate the Provider 
Selection Regime in England. This is for the 
overriding needs of the user, competition should 
be avoided where possible – currently only 
applies to below threshold arrangements, but can 
easily update once legislation is passed. Still a 
need to comply with Procurement Act 2023 
(PA23) in the meantime. 
 
Recognition that these may not be able to be 
procured due to their very nature, as provided for 
by other legislation. E.g. Sexual Health – resident 
can go to any clinic, but the Council must pay the 
costs – the Council has no choice on where that 
individual goes. Still a need to comply with PA23. 
See rational for 3.2.12 as also applicable. 
 
Just covering all future basis. 

5 All of Section 5 – Pre-Procurement 
Activity 

Not all of this is new, but this sets out clearly, in 
one place, all matters that must be considered 
before commencing procurement of any value, 
rather than being dotted around in various Rules. 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



 
Isle of Anglesey County Council Contract Procedure Rules 

Review 
Summary of Changes 

 

 
 

 

Page 4 of 8 
 

New 
Rule 
Number 

What it says Why it has been added 

5.3 Preliminary market engagement, 
Market Research and Consultation 

To make it clear that engagement with the 
market before commencing procurement activity 
is allowed and positively encouraged. This helps 
to ensure best value is obtained by discussing 
with the market. 

5.4 Specifications, Standards and Award 
Criteria 

Setting out clear requirements that these need to 
be prepared for all procurement activity, again, 
to ensure value for money is obtained. 

5.5.3 Requirement Procurement Activity 
Table 
 
 
£30k to Threshold procurements. 
Services now have a choice of closed or 
openly advertised competition 

A single tabular format setting out relevant 
thresholds and minimum required process to be 
followed. Easier to understand. 
 
The Act (and the current Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015) allow for closed competitions 
below Threshold.  
 
They do, however, require that when you 
advertise locally, you must also advertise 
nationally first. 
 
The current CPRs mandate that any procurement 
activity over £30k must be openly advertised. 
 
The Council should take advantage of the 
legislation, and allow closed competitions to local 
suppliers in the tiering approach set out in the 
draft CPRs. This also falls inline with the new draft 
Procurement Strategic Plan. A closed competition 
means that the Service identify a number of 
bidders that they believe are capable of delivering 
the services, and only invite them. 

5.6 Specific Care Services Procurement These types of contracts do not necessarily fit 
with the traditional and more regularised process 
for procurement, given the nature of these 
contracts, and the need for user / parent / carer 
choice to be incorporated. 
 
A number of English Councils have all introduced 
something in the CPRs around this area of spend 
/ care packages pre-Provider Selection Regime. 
The Provider Selection Regime, in effect, replaces 
this for English Councils, and allows direct awards 
for certain health services. 
 

Page 55



 
Isle of Anglesey County Council Contract Procedure Rules 

Review 
Summary of Changes 

 

 
 

 

Page 5 of 8 
 

New 
Rule 
Number 

What it says Why it has been added 

It is STAR’s understanding, through the Health 
Services Procurement (Wales) Act 2024, the 
Welsh Government will be looking to replicate this 
in Wales in 2025. 
 
The Rule sets out the expectation that traditional 
procurements routes should be created and used 
wherever possible. However, where a limited set 
of conditions / grounds applies, and traditional 
routes cannot meet the needs, a direct award is 
permissible. Approval is required by the Director 
of Social Services and a waiver is not necessary. 
 
Where the limited conditions / grounds are not 
met, a waiver will be required. 
 
Still a need to comply with PA23 in the meantime, 
hence applying to below threshold for now, and 
various notices will need to be published using 
the Waiver process for anything above Threshold. 

5.7 Conflicts of Interest, Anti-Bribery and 
Corruption 

Bolsters the current provision and takes account 
of the need for Conflict Assessments and 
Registers under PA23. 

6.3.5 £30k to Threshold procurements. Point 
to handbook for “allowable restrictions 
on eligibility of bidders”. 

It is intended in England, through a subordinate 
Regulation to the PA23, to allow a below 
Threshold open advert that is restricted to a 
County. It is not yet legislation. 
 
STAR understands that the Welsh Government is 
also seeking to reflect this in a further piece of 
Welsh legislation prior to the commencement of 
the Act. 
 
It has been attempted to future proof CPRs for 
this eventuality, so the Procurement Handbook 
can be updated without a change to CPRs being 
required. 

7.2.1 Approval from Procurement Manager 
required where 3 quotes not received 

To ensure that an appropriate process has been 
followed, with competent and capable suppliers 
having been invited. 

8 Termination of a Procurement Added to reflect new legislation. 
 
 

Page 56



 
Isle of Anglesey County Council Contract Procedure Rules 

Review 
Summary of Changes 

 

 
 

 

Page 6 of 8 
 

New 
Rule 
Number 

What it says Why it has been added 

9 Call-Off Contracts Made more robust provisions and clarity around 
use of Frameworks and similar. 

10 Contract Provisions and Formalities Made this clear and easier to understand by 
consolidating into a single place. 

11 Contract Management (notices) Added provision to ensure the Handbook is 
consulted around mandatory notices. 

12.1 An expanded and clarified list of 
examples of circumstances that are 
allowed. 
 
It also makes clear that for Threshold 
Contracts, in addition to the 
justifications in the Rules, those in the 
Act also apply. 

Current remaining justifications (after those that 
have been removed) are broadly similar to the 
new Rules, however, the new Rules provide 
greater clarity on what is meant (e.g. urgency). 
 
This new list provides a clearer idea to Officers as 
to what is considered appropriate, along with 
appropriate caveats and restrictions (e.g. no 
reasonable alternative), and they will need 
justification and evidence against these. 
 
This reduces any potential of unrestricted 
freedom that the current rules have on seeking a 
waiver, and that appropriate actions are 
necessary in order to evidence there is no other 
reasonable alternative. 
 
There are also some additional justifications that 
will allow the potential for more efficient 
procurement in the future (e.g. co-termination of 
contracts following a Service review). 

12.2 An expanded list of grounds for seeking 
a modification to contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Differentiation between below 
Threshold and above Threshold 
justifications 

The current rules have limited restrictions on 
when seeking a Modification to contract is 
appropriate or not.  
 
This seeks to address this by placing appropriate 
restrictions on Modifications so that there is 
probity in Service actions.  
 
Whilst restrictions from current Rules are being 
suggested, the Council should still take 
advantage of the flexibilities it has with below 
Threshold contracts. The grounds for justification 
are similar to those of the PA23, but the 
restrictions on use are increased (from 50% of 
current value, to 100% of original value). 
 

Page 57



 
Isle of Anglesey County Council Contract Procedure Rules 

Review 
Summary of Changes 

 

 
 

 

Page 7 of 8 
 

New 
Rule 
Number 

What it says Why it has been added 

12.3 Procedure for requesting a Wavier or 
Modification 

The current Rules are a little ambiguous of what 
is required to request a Waiver / Modification, 
and who approves. This seeks to make this clear, 
as well as the need for notices. 

12.4 Emergency As the current Rules don’t really set out the 
general procedure clearly, there is ambiguity on 
if you can’t meet the approval requirements. This 
seeks to address this. 

12.5 Non-Compliance with Rules The current Rules don’t have provision for what 
to do if you haven’t followed the Rules. This seeks 
to address this. 

 
 
Other Amendments to Note 
 

Current 
Rule 
Number 

What it says Comments 

4.9.1 Introduction and Need for CPRs These have been largely retained under new Rule 
1, 2 & 4, with amendments to structure and 
wording. The general emphasis has been 
retained. 
 
Some elements (definitions) moved into new 
Appendix 1. 

4.9.2 General Principles These have been largely retained under new 
Rules 1, 2 & 4, with amendments to structure and 
wording. The general emphasis has been 
retained. 

4.9.1.5 Arrangements to which the CPRs do not 
apply 

Moved to a new Rule 3, these have been 
incorporated but a couple of new ones added to 
future proof legislative changes, and allow more 
things to be out of scope. 

4.9.2.2 Joint Procedures General meaning has been maintained, but 
wording amended and included in new Rule 1. 

4.9.3 Exceptions These have been moved towards the end, under 
new Rule 12.1 to help make clear that these are 
a last resort. These have been re-worded, and 
some removed, removals in the first table. 

4.9.4.1 Pre-Procurement This has been moved into new rule 5, and 
expanded on. 
 
 
 

Page 58



 
Isle of Anglesey County Council Contract Procedure Rules 

Review 
Summary of Changes 

 

 
 

 

Page 8 of 8 
 

Current 
Rule 
Number 

What it says Comments 

4.9.4.2, 
4.9.4.3, 
4.9.4.5 - 8 

Competition Rules and e-tendering 
Procurement Service Consultation 
Competition Routes Requirements 

These have been subsumed into new Rule 5, 6.1, 
6.2 and 6.3. 
 
Everything after pre-procurement necessary for 
each of the procurement routes is set out in each 
rule. 
 
There is no moving around the Constitution to 
fully understand what is required. Each step is 
stated in the relevant rule in the relevant order. 
Aims to reduce any confusion and ambiguity. 

4.9.5 Sub-£10k Procurement This has been moved into new Rules 5 and 6.1. 

4.9.7 £30k to Threshold Procurement This has been moved into new Rule 5, 6.3, and 
7, and includes Threshold Procurement. 

4.9.8 Specification, Evaluation and 
Acceptance 

This has been moved into new Rule 5 and 7, and 
includes Threshold Procurement.  This 
information is limited to the needs to knows, with 
the remainder being reserved for the 
Procurement Handbook. 

4.9.9 Terms to be included in competitions This has been moved into new Rules 5, 6.2, and 
6.3, and will be included in the Procurement 
Handbook. 

4.9.9.3 Sealing This has been moved to new Rule 10. 
 
It has also been increased from £50k to 
Threshold, and includes all Execution of Works 
contracts and other mandatory requirements. 
 
Specific Care Services has a £500k threshold to 
recognise the nature of these contracts. 
 
Benchmarking showed that the Anglesey sealing 
threshold was considerably lower than 
neighbours (between £100k and £350k in North 
Wales Councils). Threshold seems appropriate 
due to the inherent risks within. 

4.9.10 Post Contract Management This has been moved to new Rule 11. 

4.9.10.3 & 
4 

Modifications to Contract This has been moved to new Rule 12.2, with 
additional provisions included to make this more 
robust. 

4.9.11 Variations This has been moved to new Rule 12.2. 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

November 2024 

 

 

Isle of Anglesey County Council 

Report to: The Executive  
 

Date: 10th December 2024 
 

Subject: Housing Rent HRA and Housing Service Charges 
2025/26  
 

Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Robin Williams 
 

Head of Service / 
Director: 
 

Ned Michael, Head of Housing Services 

Report Author: 
 
Tel: 
E-mail: 

Darren Gerrard, Housing Service Business Manager 
01248 752265 
dkghp@anglesey.llyw.cymru 
 

Local Members:   
 

 

 

A – Recommendation/s and reason/s 
Following the Welsh Government’s announcement of an increase of up to 2.7% in 
social rent levels Members of the Executive Committee are asked to approve the 
rent increase and service charges for 2025/26 as set out below :- 
 
R1 to approve the rent increase of 2.7% on all general rent units in line with 

the Welsh Government rent policy on collection over 51 weeks. 
 
R2 to approve an increase of £1.00 per week for the rent of all garages.  
 
R3 to approve that the service charges costs as noted within section 6.3 of the 

report be applied to all tenants who receive the relevant services. 
 

R4 to approve the administration of the ‘Rent Support Scheme’, a local scheme 
to support tenants who are in financial difficulty. 

 
R5 that a letter is written to Welsh Government stating that the increase in 

rents is insufficient to enable the HRA to finance the increased costs as a 
result of additional employer NI contributions following the Budget 
announcement, WHQS2023 standards and building cost inflation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 6

mailto:dkghp@anglesey.llyw.cymru


2 

November 2024 

 

A – Recommendation/s and reason/s 
 
Reasons: 

 

1.0 Background 
 
1.1 The Council is required under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to 
keep a Housing Revenue Account (HRA), which is ring-fenced for transactions 
specifically relating to Local Authority Housing.   

 
1.2  On the 13th November 2024 the Welsh Government confirmed in a letter that it 
had agreed the Policy for Social Housing Rents for 2025/26. It advises all Local 
Authorities should use the formula of consumer price index (CPI) + 1% with the 
value of CPI in September 2024 being 1.7%. 

 
1.3 The Minister has determined that the total maximum annual rent uplift across 
the whole of the stock will be up to 2.7%. 

 
1.4 Whilst 2.7% will be the maximum increase allowable, it is expected that the 
Authority’s decision on rent increase must consider the needs of landlords and 
affordability of rents for tenants equally. 
 
1.5  The proposed increase by the Welsh Government has been agreed before the 
recent Budget announcement that employer NI contributions would be increasing 
by 1.2% to 15% and the lowering of the threshold from £9,100 to £5,000. It is 
estimated that this change will add approximately £100,000 to the HRA staff costs. 

 
1.6 It is the ambition of the Welsh Governments that all Registered Social 
Landlords including the 11 local authorities that have retained their housing stock 
commit to meeting to the WHQS 2023 recently launched by 2033. It will require 
significant investment from the HRA to fund over the next 8 years to realise these 
additional standards which will result in a reduced revenue surplus being available 
from the HRA to finance capital investment required to meet the new standards. 
 
1.7 We will continue to receive the Major Repair Allowance of approximately 
£2.7m from the Welsh Government which has not increased to meet the additional 
new standards. 

 
1.8 It is also expected of the Welsh Government that all RSLs in Wales continue to 
increase the number of new affordable social homes being developed to fulfil their 
ambition of 20,000 new homes. Over the past 3 years the Housing Service has 
completed the development of 76 new homes and purchased 51 former Council 
houses.  In addition to this we have a development programme of 49 new homes 
on site. 

 
1.9 We trust that the above justifies the means case to be maximising our rental 
income in order to meet the aspirations of the Welsh Governments which includes 
the need to ensure a suitable flooring finish in our homes which is going to be 
increasing our costs when re-letting homes. 

Page 62



3 

November 2024 

 

A – Recommendation/s and reason/s 
 

1.10 As part of the Welsh Government's rent standard, all Social Landlords are 
required to make an annual assessment of affordability for tenants, cost efficiency 
and demonstrate that their homes and services represent value for money. 
 
 1.11 Rent Agreement Commitments and Initiatives 

 
As part of the consideration process for this settlement, a number of new 
commitments and initiatives have been set by Welsh Government which include :- 
 

• No evictions due to financial hardship for the term of the settlement, where 
tenants engage with landlords. 

• Provide targeted support to those experiencing financial hardship to access 
support. 

• Maximise the use of all suitable social housing stock, with a focus on helping 
those in the poorest quality transitional accommodation move into longer 
term homes that meet their needs. 

• Continue focused communication to encourage tenants to talk to their 
landlord if they are experiencing financial difficulties and access support 
available. 

• Build on existing engagement with tenants in rent setting decisions, 
including explaining how income from rent is invested and spent. 

• Continued commitment to invest in existing homes to keep them safe, warm 
and affordable to live in. 

• Work in partnership with tenants, Welsh Government, funders and other 
partners to develop a consistent approach to assessing affordability across 
the social housing sector in Wales. 

• Continue to strengthen approaches designed to ensure you minimise all 
evictions and work effectively with partners to deliver on the commitment not 
to evict into homelessness. 

• Undertake a standardised tenant satisfaction survey and provide the data 
for publication on a central website to assist tenants in scrutinising and 
comparing landlord performance. The next submission date, based on the 
revised core questions, is 28 February 2024 for publication in April. 
(Separate guidance has been issued.) 

 
1.12   Intermediate Rent - the Minister for Climate Change has agreed an interim 
position that landlords may offer Intermediate Rent tenancies at 80% of market value 
as long as they continue to consider and pay due attention to Local Housing 
Allowance rates. In all cases, landlords must be satisfied that these tenancies are 
still affordable for tenants. 
 
2.0 Affordability 

 
2.1 In order to assess the current average rent affordability for Isle of Anglesey 

County Council tenants, the Joseph Rowntree Foundation (JRF) Living 
Rent methodology has been used.  
 

Page 63



4 

November 2024 

 

A – Recommendation/s and reason/s 
2.2 The JRF Living Rent model establishes a link between rents and the ability 

of people on low income to afford them, using the lower quartile localised 
earnings data from the Office for National Statistics Annual Survey of 
Hours and Earnings. 
 

2.3 The model states that a Living Rent should be affordable for a household 
with someone in full-time employment, working the average number of 
hours worked per week and earnings around the minimum wage. The 
model therefore uses the lower quartile national earnings figures. 

 
2.4 The principle of JRF model states that 28% of these net weekly earnings 

(lowest quartile) is therefore £96.45 per week, meaning a person on social 
rent should not be paying more than £96.45 per week on rent for a single 
person in a one bedroom flat. 

 
2.5 Weightings are necessary to reflect the different composition of our 

property types and sizes :- 
 

Property Category Factor 
No. of 

bedroom Factor 

Bedsit -0.10 Bedsit 0.00 

Flat 0.00 1 Bed 0.00 

Bungalow 0.10 2 Bed 0.20 

House 0.10 3 Bed 0.30 

    4 Bed 0.40 

    5+ Bed 0.50 

 
2.6 Using the JRF methodology shows that the average rent for all property 

types and sizes is currently considered affordable for Anglesey tenants 
and therefore complies with Welsh Government requirements. 
 

2.7 If we calculate the affordability based on the inflation rate of 2.7% all 
categories would be remain to be deemed affordable. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



5 

November 2024 

 

A – Recommendation/s and reason/s 
3.0 Impact of rent increases on our tenants 
 
3.1 The annual rent increase will be calculated by ‘Current Rent + 2.7%’ for all 
tenants. 

 
3.2 Currently 2931 of the Council’s tenants (74.5%) will face no additional hardship 
as a consequence of the proposed rent increase and service charges, as they are 
in receipt of full or part Housing Benefit or in receipt of Universal Credit.  Tenants 
who are not in receipt of housing benefit will have to meet the rent and service 
charges, unless of course they become eligible for benefit, following the increase. 

 

3.3 Applying the 2.7% increase will provide a range of increase between the £2.20 
per week and £3.98 per week for all tenants. 
 
1190 increase between £2.20 - £2.79 
2670 increase between £2.80 - £3.39 
64 increase between £3.40 - £3.98 
 
3.4 There are approximately 993 tenants who are not receiving any help towards 
their rent and are therefore, paying the rent in full. The implementation of these 
increases will mean :- 
 
247 increase between £2.20 - £2.79 
732 increase between £2.80 - £3.39 
14 increase between £3.40 - £3.96 
 
 
 
 

Property 
Type 

No. of 
Bedroom 

Start 
Factor 

Adj 
Factor 

Living 
Rent 

IOACC 
Ave 
weekly 
rent 

Rent + 2.7%  

Bedsit Bedsit 1.00 0.9 £86.81 £81.60 £83.80 

Flat 1 Bed 1.00 1 £96.45 £91.74 £94.22 

Flat 2 Bed 1.00 1.2 £115.74 £101.40 £104.14 

Flat 3 Bed 1.00 1.3 £125.39 £112.00 £115.02 

Flat 4 Bed 1.00 1.4 £135.03 £122.40 £125.70 

Bungalow 1 Bed 1.00 1.1 £106.10 £101.39 £104.13 

Bungalow 2 Bed 1.00 1.3 £125.39 £111.05 £114.05 

Bungalow 3 Bed 1.00 1.4 £135.03 £120.99 £124.26 

Bungalow 4 Bed 1.00 1.5 £144.68 £133.79 £137.40 

House 1 Bed  1.00 1.1 £106.10 £101.57 £104.31 

House 2 Bed  1.00 1.3 £125.39 £112.17 £115.20 

House 3 Bed  1.00 1.4 £135.03 £119.94 £123.18 

House 4 Bed  1.00 1.5 £144.68 £127.89 £131.34 

House 5+ Bed  1.00 1.6 £154.32 £137.25 £140.96 

Page 65



6 

November 2024 

 

A – Recommendation/s and reason/s 
3.5 Intermediate Rent 
 
We currently have 37 properties under the ‘Intermediate’ rent rate and in order to 
be fair and consistent, it is decided to apply the same increase of 2.7% for these 
tenants. The ranges of increase will be :- 
 
6 increase between £2.20 - £2.69 
3 increase between £2.80 - £3.39 
28 increase between £3.40 – £4.07 

 
3.6 If we apply the 2.7% rent increase and collect over 51 weeks to take account 
the rent free week over the Christmas period. We will generate an annual rental 
income of £23.1m which is approximately £605k of additional annual rental 
income. 

 
3.7 Due to the  impact of the Government’s Welfare  Benefit  Reform  and the 
impact of the Cost of Living crisis the  provision  for  bad  debts  has  therefore 
been increased  to  £347,956 (1.5%) for 2025/26  as  we expect  arrears  will  
increase  when tenants have to meet a greater proportion of rent themselves. 

 
4.0  HRA 30 year Business Plan 

 
4.1 In the 30 year plan published in March 2024 the Council demonstrated that we 
are ambitious by providing more affordable housing together with extra care 
housing. Therefore, it is imperative that we maximise the rental income to be able 
to develop and increase the stock. 

 
 

5.0 Financial Support for tenants  
 

5.1 Housing Services has a Financial Inclusion team which consists of three 
Financial Inclusion Officers available to provide information, advice and support to 
tenants who would face any financial hardship as a result of implementing the 
increase.  

 
5.2 The Council will also set aside a 'Rent Support Scheme' fund which is a local 
scheme for tenants who may be in financial difficulty as a result of the increase. 

 
5.3 Households deemed to need assistance with their rent will be able to apply to 
or be referred to the Rent Support Scheme.    

 
6.0  Service Charges 

 
6.1 The charges for services that the Authority provides during 2025/26 are based 
on actual costs incurred during 2023/24 and is shared equally among tenants and 
leaseholders utilizing the services. It should be noted that the majority of these 
costs are eligible for housing benefit or Universal Credit. 

 

Page 66



7 

November 2024 

 

A – Recommendation/s and reason/s 
6.2 Most of the costs for providing these services have increased compared to last 
year’s figures. The total income that will be generated is approximately £243k.  

 
6.3 Proposed 2025/2026 weekly charges, based on 51 weeks, range from: 

 
Lift maintenance - £0.23 - £2.89 
Cleaning of communal areas - £4.57 – £12.72 
Fire alarms and fire equipment - £2.10 
Door entry systems - £0.25 
Sewerage Charges - £4.47 
Heating & Lighting of communal areas - £1.68 
TV Aerial’s within communal areas - £0.20 
Ground Maintenance (Domestic Properties) - £5.75 (6 monthly charge) 
Ground Maintenance (Sheltered Properties) - £0.15 - £3.23) 
Management costs at 15% of each service charge. 

 

6.4 Currently there are 40 leaseholders who will be charged for the services they 
receive by the Authority. This will generate an additional annual income of 
approximately £10k. 
 
7.0 Garages 

 
7.1 The Welsh Government Rent Policy does not provide any guidance on how to 
increase garage rents.  The Council is therefore proposing to increase the garage 
rent by 10% which will increase the rent by £1.00. This will increase the rent from 
£10.02 per week to £11.02 and will generate income of £290k after deducting 
empty garages. As at 4th November 2024 there are 517 occupied garages and 151 
empty garages. 
 
We will aim to use the extra income to create a strategic plan for the garages. 
 

 
 

B – What other options did you consider and why did you reject them 
and/or opt for this option?  
 
Raising the rent by a lower sum than the maximum allowed by the Welsh 
Government Rent Policy, but given the additional budget pressures faced by the 
HRA, a rise lower than the 2.7% would be insufficient to meet rising costs and would 
weaken the overall financial sustainability of the HRA. 
 

 

 

C – Why is this a decision for the Executive? 
The Welsh Government Rent Policy has implications for the HRA Business Plan. 
 

 

 

 

Page 67



8 

November 2024 

 

Ch – Is this decision consistent with policy approved by the full 
Council? 

All Local Authorities, as instructed by the Welsh Government are required to 
implement the Rent Policy. Rejecting this policy would ultimately mean a loss 
of income for the Authority and inevitably affect the services provided. This 
would also undermine the HRA Business Plan and and potentially leave us 
subject to intervention by the Welsh Government if the policy was not 
adopted. 

 

 

D – Is this decision within the budget approved by the Council? 
Yes 
 

 

 

 

 

Dd –  Assessing the potential impact (if relevant): 
1 How does this decision impact on 

our long term needs as an Island? 

Through continued investment within 
our stock meaning homes achieve 
WHQS standards on an ongoing basis 

2 Is this a decision which it is 
envisaged will prevent future costs / 
dependencies on the Authority? If 
so, how? 

Not relevant 

3 Have we been working 
collaboratively with other 
organisations to come to this 
decision?  If so, please advise 
whom. 

Anglesey works with the other 10 stock 
holding authorities and the WLGA to 
influence the Welsh Government’s rent 
policy. 

4 Have Anglesey citizens played a 
part in drafting this way forward, 
including those directly affected by 
the decision? Please explain how. 

An online survey was conducted to 
engage with tenants and receive their 
views on rent affordability & rent setting. 
Tenants are informed annually of rent & 
service charges increase post-
democratic approval in December. 
Tenants are provided with 2 months 
notice of this increase via letters. 

5 Note any potential impact that this 
decision would have on the groups 
protected under the Equality Act 
2010. 

EIA has been created and updated. 
Applying the rent increases to all 
tenants means we will apportion the 
increase fairly and limit the individual 
increase per tenant. 

6 If this is a strategic decision, note 
any potential impact that the 
decision would have on those 
experiencing socio-economic 
disadvantage. 

Welsh Government expects Councils to 
increase rents annually and provides an 
appropriate formula for this purpose. 
Councils have an obligation to maintain 
high standard of accommodation for its 
tenants, and is therefore reliant on this 

Page 68



9 

November 2024 

 

Dd –  Assessing the potential impact (if relevant): 
additional revenue to counter the 
effects of inflation. Most tenants will be 
unaffected by the increase due to the 
eligibility of Housing Benefit or 
Universal Credit.  

7 Note any potential impact that this 
decision would have on 
opportunities for people to use the 
Welsh language and on treating the 
Welsh language no less favourably 
than the English language. 

None – the rent increase is not directly 
associated with the Welsh Language 
given all tenants will be affected by the 
rent & service Charges increase. 

 

 

E – Who did you consult?                         What did they say? 
1 Chief Executive / Senior Leadership 

Team (SLT) 
(mandatory) 

The draft report was presented to the 
Leadership Team on 19 November 
2024 and comments made at that 
meeting have been considered in the 
drafting of the final report. 

2 
 

Finance / Section 151 
(mandatory)  

Commented on the draft report and 
these were incorporated into the final 
draft. 

3 Legal / Monitoring Officer 
(mandatory)  

Was present at the Leadership Team 
meeting on 19 November 2024 

4 Human Resources (HR) Not applicable 

5 Property  Not applicable 

6 Information Communication 
Technology (ICT) 

Not applicable 

7 Procurement Not applicable 

8 Scrutiny  

9 Local Members Relevant to all Members 
 

 

 

 

 

F - Appendices: 
 
 

 

 

Ff - Background papers (please contact the author of the Report for any further 

information): 

WG Notification 2025/26 
Rent Support Scheme Policy 
EIA Assessment 

 

Page 69



 
 
 
 
Tai ac Adfywio 
Housing and Regeneration    

 

 

                        
              Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

             Caerdydd ● Cardiff 

 

 
 
 

CF10 3NQ 
Ffôn  ● Tel 03000256560 

www.llyw.cymru 
www.gov.wales 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairs of Registered Social Landlords 
Director of Finance of Local Housing Authorities  
Director of Housing of Local Housing Authorities 
Chief Executives of Registered Social Landlords 
Directors of Finance, Registered Social Landlords 
 

                                                    
 
 

 

   
 

  13 November 2024 
 

 
Dear Colleagues  
 
Social Housing Rent and Service Charges 2025-2026 
 
The purpose of this letter is to advise social landlords of the maximum rent increase 
which can be applied to social housing tenancies from 1st April 2025. 
 
I wrote to you on 17 May to inform you of the decision to extend the current Welsh 
Government Rent and Service Charge Standard 2020-2025, as we undertake the 
necessary work to inform our development of a future social rent policy for Wales. This 
means the maximum rent uplift to social rents across Wales for 2025-26 will be set 
and implemented under the framework provided for under the current rent standard.  
 
The Cabinet Secretary for Housing and Local Government confirmed in her Written 
Statement of 16 October that the September Consumer Price Index (CPI) was 1.7%, 
which means for the following year:  
 
1. The total maximum annual rent uplift for 2025-2026 across the whole of your stock 

(as at 31 March 2024) will be up to 2.7%. 
 

2. Whilst 2.7% will be the maximum increase allowable, it must not be regarded as 
the default increase. Landlords’ decisions on rent must take into account the 
affordability of rents for tenants  
 

3. The level of an individual rent can be reduced, frozen or can rise by up to an 
additional £2 per week, on condition that the total rental income collectable 
across the whole stock increases by no more than 2.7%.  This provision is 
designed to enable social landlords to restructure rents where appropriate. In 

Page 70

http://www.llyw.cymru/
http://www.gov.wales/
https://www.gov.wales/written-statement-social-rent-uplift-2025-2026
https://www.gov.wales/written-statement-social-rent-uplift-2025-2026


 

 

effect, if you decide an individual rent should increase by up to £2.00 per week on 
top of 2.7%, other rent(s) will need to be frozen or reduced to ensure the overall 
increase for the whole stock does not exceed 2.7%. 
 

4. Social landlords should advise the Welsh Government if they have concerns about 
the impact that the rent standard has upon their business plan, financial viability or 
on their ability to meet their obligations to tenants and lenders.  
 

5. Under the rent standard social landlords are expected to set a rent and service 
charge policy which ensures social housing is and remains affordable for current 
and future tenants.  As part of the annual decision on the level of rent 
uplift/reduction to be applied, social landlords must assess cost efficiencies across 
the operating cost base and value for money as well as affordability for tenants.  
 

 
Suspension of Target Rent Bands 
 
The use of target rent bands to inform rent setting has been suspended since 2021 
and this will continue into 2025-2026.  The role of target rent bands is being reviewed 
as part of the wider work to develop a new social rent policy for Wales.  
 
 
Monitoring Compliance 
 
All social landlords are required to make, and evidence, an annual assessment of 
affordability for tenants; cost efficiencies; and to demonstrate their homes and 
services represent value for money as part of their decision on the rent uplift to be 
applied each year.  
 
Social landlords should remember the rent standard allows for the maximum increase 
which can be applied.  It is not a target rent.   
 
To assist with providing the necessary assurance, each social landlord will be required 
to complete a self-certification monitoring form which will be used to monitor 
compliance with the Welsh Government Rent Standard. The form is included under 
Annex B of the Rent Standard, and will be further updated and published before the 
end of November.  This must be completed and returned by the end of February 2025.   
 
Please note that detailed assessments of compliance with the rent standard will be 
undertaken and further information/assurance may be requested where there are any 
concerns.   
 
 
Rent Agreement Commitments and Initiatives  
 
As landlords have evidenced, the wider package of support and assistance to tenants 
agreed with the sector as part of the wider rent settlement, remains fundamental to 
enabling people to manage through the enduring cost of living crisis.  These initiatives, 
which are outlined in Part 3 – Jointly Agreed Initiatives of the rent standard will be 
rolled forward, unchanged into next year as part of the extension of the current rent 
standard.  

Page 71

https://gov.wales/rent-and-service-charge-standard-2020-2025
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2024-01/rent-and-service-charge-standard-2020-2025.pdf


 

 

 
In the meantime, we are continuing to progress our programme of work to review the 
implementation of the current rent standard. Your support with and input into this work 
remains integral to shaping our policy considerations and will help inform the 
development of policy proposals for a new social rent policy for the future.  
 
We will undertake a formal consultation exercise on our draft policy proposals for a 
new social rent policy for Wales in Summer 2025 but a progress update on the current 
work will follow later this winter.   
 
 
If you have any queries or concerns about rent setting and Welsh Government’s 
expectations, please feel free to contact the teams through the email addresses 
below. 
 
LHA’s – HousingQualityStandards@gov.wales  
RSL’s – HousingRegulation@gov.wales  
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 

 

 
EMMA WILLIAMS 
Cyfarwyddwr Tai ac Adfywio / Director of Housing and Regeneration  
Llywodraeth Cymru / Welsh Government 
 
c.c.      Local Authority Council Leaders 

 Local Authority Chief Executives 
 Local Authority HRA Business Plan contacts 

Welsh Local Government Association 
Community Housing Cymru 
Chartered Institute of Housing Cymru 
TPAS Cymru 
Tai Pawb 
UK Finance 

Page 72

mailto:HousingQualityStandards@gov.wales
mailto:HousingRegulation@gov.wales


 

COST OF LIVING SUPPORT SCHEME 

 

TAI MÔN RENT SUPPORT SCHEME 

2025/26 

 

 

 

 

 

Date Version Name 

Feb 2023 0.1 Llinos Williams 

April 2023 0.2 Darren Gerrard 

Feb 2024 0.3 Katie Jones  

December 2024 0.4 Darren Gerrard 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 73



 

1.  BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Each Year, the Housing Department undertake a business plan analysis on the rental 

liability for the forthcoming financial Year 

1.2 IOACC Executive approved a 2.7% increase in rental liability for the 2025/26 financial 

Year.  

1.3  Rental income support existing operations and the growth of Council properties on 

Anglesey in order to address housing need.  

1.4 Due to the cost of living crisis and the continued increase in household expenditure, 

a mitigation to support tenants that are facing financial hardship is to develop a rent 

support scheme.  

2. WHO CAN APPLY OR BE REFERRED FOR A PAYMENT? 

2.1 Council tenants considered in financial difficulty will be able to apply to or be 

referred to this scheme.  

2.2 Applications must be undertaken by the Lead tenant (including joint tenants) and 

with support from their Housing Management Officer (Arrears) 

2.3 Tenants that are claiming welfare support and are struggling financially due to 

under-occupancy rates (bedroom tax), historical arrears whilst claiming welfare are 

entitled to this funding, however, must be supported by their Housing Management 

Officer to complete a Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP) and explore other 

funding opportunities first. In addition to this, there will be a continued emphasis for 

tenants facing under occupancy rates to complete a housing application for a 

transfer into a smaller and much more affordable property.  

2.4 Each application will be required to complete a full personal financial statement by 

referring officers and will be referred to the Financial Inclusion Team if required. 

During this assessment, the Financial Inclusion Officers may assess additional 

avenues of support to improve household and financial wellbeing.  

2.5 Applications or referrals from support workers or social workers on behalf of the 

individual(s) in need will be accepted for consideration but only if completed with 

the full knowledge, consent, and participation of the individual. 

2.6 Any backdating request or amount of award will be considered by the assessing 

officer based on the individuals’ circumstances. 

3. WHAT CAN AN AWARD FROM THIS SCHEME BE USED FOR? 

3.1 An award from this scheme can be made if a tenant(s) can demonstrate that 

he/she/they are in financial difficulty. 

3.2 The funding will be secured against the rent account on Housing Services’ tenancy 

recording system. 

4.  RENT SUPPORT SCHEME TRANSACTION OVERVIEW 

Page 74



 

4.1 Before making an award, the Assessing Officer must be satisfied that the claimant is 

in financial difficulty, is fully liable for rent and in need of the rent support scheme 

4.2 The claimant or support worker applying on their behalf must provide information 

about the financial difficulty the individual is in.  

 

5. THE APPLICATION PROCESS 

5.1 Claimants will be required to complete an application form which will be available in 

digital and paper format.   

5.2 The application form contains an income and expenditure section. This must be fully 

completed by the applicant and referring officer before it can be assessed.  The 

claimant should include recent bank statements or documents with the application 

form that demonstrate the applicant is in financial hardship, and that information 

given in the income and expenditure section is accurate. Providing these documents 

is the responsibility of the claimant or their representative. If further documentation 

is requested by the Assessing Officer, this must be supplied and received within 2 

weeks from the date of the request being made. 

5.3 Applications to the scheme will normally be made by the individual in need. 

However, claims can also be accepted from third parties such as appointees, 

advocates and support services acting on behalf of the claimant if they are 

vulnerable. 

6. THE DECISION MAKING PROCESS 

6.1 Each application to the scheme should be considered on its own merits.  Decisions 

should be fair and consistent.  

6.2 One area of difficulty in assessing eligibility for an award may arise with regards to 

applicants with alcohol and/or substance abuse problems. The individuals concerned 

may lead chaotic lifestyles that result in poor decision making. This may include 

expenditure on items that would, to most people, appear to be unreasonable. 

However, this should not necessarily preclude making an award. The main criteria in 

making a decision in such cases will be to determine whether the applicant is 

receiving appropriate help to deal with their problems. If they are being supported 

on a formal programme delivered by an official service provider, it may be relevant 

to consider making an award. Awards in these circumstances should be supported 

by documentary evidence from the organisation working with the applicant. 

Furthermore, the proportion of household income devoted to these items will also 

be a relevant factor in the decision making process. 

6.3 The Assessing Officer must always take account of individual circumstances when 

assessing the reasonableness of household expenditure. For example, some medical 

conditions or disabilities may require high levels of expenditure on some items; this 

should not necessarily preclude making an award. However, where such situations 

apply, the Assessing Officer may require the applicant to provide documentary 

evidence in support of the stated expenditure. 

Page 75



 

6.4 Should the Assessing Officer determine that an applicant’s stated expenditure on 

certain items is unreasonably excessive, they have discretion to disregard part or all 

of that expenditure in the financial assessment. In determining this, an explanation 

of the decision must be given. Similarly, where the officer deems that the applicant 

is clearly living beyond their means in an unreasonable manner, they may choose to 

disregard such expenditure from the calculation. Again, an explanation of this must 

be given. In such cases, a referral for budgeting advice will be offered to assist long 

term.  

6.5 In some instances, an applicant will provide expenditure profiles that are clearly 

unrealistically low or do not include expenditure that would normally be present in 

any household. In such cases, the Assessing Officer should consider increasing the 

expenditure profile by an appropriate notional amount in order to ensure that the 

applicant is not unduly disadvantaged during the assessment process.  

6.6 Non-dependant charges will normally be treated as part of household income. 

However, the assessing officer may, in certain circumstances, choose to disregard 

the non-dependant charge as income. As a general rule, where the charge relates to 

a non-dependant who is employed, it should always be treated as income. However, 

where the charge relates to someone in receipt of welfare benefits, the assessing 

officer may choose to disregard it as income if they believe that there is no 

reasonable prospect that the non-dependant will contribute towards household 

costs and that the failure to do so will result in financial hardship to the DHP 

applicant 

6.7  Expenditure listed by the claimant in the application form relating to court fines will 

not be taken into account; the scheme cannot be seen to be paying off such 

liabilities where the claimant has penalties imposed by the courts.  

6.8 Consideration should be made to alternative sources of assistance; for example -

could the hardship be eased by applying to DHP and DAF (EAP or IAP).  This will 

depend on the individual circumstances of the applicant and the reason for their 

application.  For example; a claimant stating they are in crisis from regular spending 

on take away foods because they do not have a cooker could be provided with an air 

fryer or slow cooker in order to cook meals from home and reduce food spend in 

take away establishments.  

6.9  If an Assessing Officer identifies the need for further advice, guidance and assistance 

that may benefit the claimant in the long term, appropriate referrals or signposting 

for help will be made but compliance prior to the award decision will not be a 

determining factor in the application from this scheme.  

 

7. TIMESCALES 

7.1 This scheme is in place to provide help to Council tenants who and are suffering 

financial hardship. Consequently, it is essential that applications are dealt with as 

quickly as possible. Unless exceptional circumstances prevent it or additional 

information/documentation is needed from the claimant to enable a decision to be 

Page 76



 

made, all applications should be determined within one month of receipt with the 

aim of a quicker processing time where possible. 

 

 

8. THE AMOUNT OF AWARD 

8.1 Awards will be dependant on the individuals circumstances however a maximum 

award of £1,000 is in place to ensure as many individuals as possible are supported.   

9. APPEALING A DECISION 

9.1 Where the applicant disagrees with the decision not to make an award, or the 

amount of an award, they can request that the decision be reconsidered. This can be 

referred to a Senior Officer for a final determination on the matter. 

10. HOW PAYMENT WILL BE MADE   

10.1 Payment will be made against the rent account on the Housing Management system 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 The Executive's Forward Work Programme
	Exec-Rep-10-12-24
	Exec_FWP_10-12-24

	5 Procurement Strategic Plan and Contract Procedure Rules
	Report - Procurement Strategic Plan & Contract Procedure Rules
	Appendix 1 - Procurement Strategic Plan
	Slide 1:  Procurement Strategic Plan  2024 - 2029
	Slide 2: Foreword 
	Slide 3: 3
	Slide 4: Council Plan  2023-2028 Strategic Objectives
	Slide 5: Council Plan 2023-2028 - Values
	Slide 6: Purpose of the Procurement Strategic Plan
	Slide 7: 8
	Slide 8: Strategic circle
	Slide 9: 9
	Slide 10: Key priority areas
	Slide 11: Key priority: Leadership and culture
	Slide 12: Key priority: Data and commercially informed 
	Slide 13: Key priority: Social value and environment
	Slide 14: Key priority: Drive Compliance
	Slide 15: Key priority: Local Economy
	Slide 16: Governance: monitoring and evaluation
	Slide 17: Appendix A: Procurement & Commissioning Cycle
	Slide 18: Appendix B1: Supplier Expectations (Core)
	Slide 19: Appendix B2: Supplier Expectations (Additional)
	Slide 20: Appendix B3: Baseline Data 

	Appendix 2 - Contract Procedure Rules
	Appendix 3 - CPR Changes - Summary

	6 Housing Rents and Service Charges 2025/26
	Report - Rent Increase 2025.26
	Appendix 1 - Rent Settlement Letter for 2025-26
	Appendix 2 - Rent Support scheme


